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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Inox Green Energy Services Limited

(Formerly known as Inox Wind Infraslructure Services Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Staternenis

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial slalements of nox Green Energy Services Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries {Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group™) and its associaies, which comprise lhe consolidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2022, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, lhe consolidated staternent of changes in
equityand the consolidated cash flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according lo the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial stalements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity wilh the aceounling principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated
state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2022, of consolidated loss, consolidated changes in equityand its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(1 0) of
the Cotmpanies act, 2013, Our responsibilities Under those Standards are furlher described in the Auditor's
Responsibllities for the Audit of the Consolidaled Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Gode of Ethics issued by ICAL and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sulficient and appropriale to provide a basis for our opinion,

Emphasis of matter

1. We draw attention lo Nole 48 of the Consclidated Financials Staternent which describes the
management's assessment of the impact of the outbreak of Covid-19 on property, plant and equipment,
revenue, trade receivables, investments and other assels. The management believes that no adjustments are
required in the financial statements as lhere is no impact in the current financial year. However, in view of
highly uncertain economic environment and its likely effect on fulure revenues due to Covid-19, a definitive
assessment of the imnact on the subsequent years is dependent Lipon circumstances as they evolve.

2. We draw altention to Nole 41 of the Consolidated Financials Statement which describes that the
Group have a system of obtaining periodic confirmalion of batances (rom various parties (other than disputed
parties). The External Balance Conlirmaltions were sent to banks andg paries and cerlain party's balances are
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subject to confirmation / reconciliation. Adjuslments, if any will be accounted for on confirmationfreconciliation
of the same, which in the opinion of the management will not have a material impact.

Our opinion is not medified in respect of the matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consclidated financial statements of the current period. These malters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matlers.,

The Key Audit Matters S ——

Litigation Matters

The Group has certain significant pending legal
proceedings with JudiciallQuasi-Judicial for various
complex matters with conlractorfiransporder, customer
and other parties, continuing from earlier years.

Further, the Group has material uncertain tax positions
including matters under dispule which involves significant
judgment te determine the possible oulcome of these
dispufes.

Refer to Nole 38 of the Consolidaled Financial
Statermnents.

Due to the complexity involved in these litigalion maflers,
management's judgement regarding recognition and
measurement of provisions flor lhese tegal proceedings is
inherently uncertain and might change over lime as ihe
outcomes of the legal cases are determined. Accordingly,
it has been considered as a key audit maller.

Discontinued operations

Refer note 32 to the accompanying consolidated financial
statements for the accounling policy and relaled
disclosures respectively. Cn 08 Oclober 2021, as a parl
of the business reorganization, the Holding Company's
Board of Directors have approved transfer of ils EPC
business to wholly owned subsidiary (WOS} of ils
Company, Inox Wind Limited (WL}, RESCO Global
Wind Service Limiled ('RESCQY), wilh an objective to
segregate the EPC Business and Operations and
Maintenance Business (referred as ‘O8M Business’) of
the Company. The divestmenl has been approved by the
shareholders of the Holding Company in iheir Extra-
ordinary General Meeting held on 21 Oclober 2021,

Subsequently on 31 December 2021, lo implement the
above divesiure, the Holding Company has executed a

Business Transfer Agreemenl (BTA) with RESCO to | 3

'"—I_'ﬁ'&'r'\i our audit addressed the key audit matter

¥ Assessed  the  management's  position  through
discussions with the in-house legal expert and
exlernal legal opinions obtained by the Holding
sompany (where considered necessary) on both, the
probabilily of success in the aforesald cases, and the
magnifude of any potenlial loss.

> Discussed wilh the management on the development
in these litigations during the year ended March 31,
2022,

» Rolled out of enquiry letters fo the Holding
Company's management and noted the responses
received and assessed the same.

> Assessed the objectivity, independence and

competence of the Company's legal counsel (where

applicable) involved in lhe process and legal experts
engaged by the company, if any.

Reviewed the disclosures made by the Group in the

finangial statements in (his regard.

-

“Qur au'd-it-pr'o'(:'édufé:_s_iﬁ"c_lu'déd, bul were not limited to, the
tollowing i relalion to the disconlinued operations:

»  Oblained an understanding of the management
process for ensuring classificalion, measurement,
disclosure and allocations for lhe identified disposal
groups

»  Referred the BTA signed between the Holding

Company and RESCQO for divestment of EPC
Business segment;
¥ Reviewed the  assessment performed by the

managemenl for accounting and presentation of
these transaclions in accordance with applicable
accounting slandards

¥ Reviewed lhe assels and liabilities being transferred
o RIZSCO are in accordance with the ferms of BTA

>  Tesled the arithmelical accuracy of computations
used by managemen! to determine the amounts
being transferred

o Assessod manasgemenl’s conclusions regarding the
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transfer EPC business undertaking, logether wilh all |

assets and liabilities as specified in the BTA in relation lo
the EPC business as a going concern through slump sale.
The assets and liabilities of the EPC business amounling
to (098,598.55 lakhs and 1198,128.71 lakhs respeclively
are fransferred to RESCO from the date BTA becoming

effective and difference on assets and liabililies
amounting D$469.84 lakhs on transfer of Ihe EPC
Business underlaking bhas recorded as purchase

consideration receivable. The Holding company has
completed its compliance with the lerms and conditions of
BTA on 31 December 2021 and conseaquently, the BTA
has become effective frorn that date,

We identified this as a key audit matier for currenl year
audit in view of the significance of the impact of these
restructuring ftransactions have on the consolidated
financial statements including the amounts involved and
exercise of management judgments with respecl Lo
identification and segregation of assets and liabilities and
allocation of costs pertaining lo EPC Business segment
and O&M Business Segment,

Alternate audit procedure carried out in light of COVID—19 outbreaks

As precautionary measures against COVID-19, the
statutory audit was conducled via making arrangements
to provide requisite documents/ informafion through an
electronic medivm as an aliernative sudil procedure.

We have identified such an allernative awdil procedure as
a key audit matier.

“allocations of the assel, liabilities, income . and
expenses thal are assigned to the discontinued
operations lor the respeclive segments

»  ANsgsessed  reasonableness of  management's
judgement with respect to the likelthood and
expecled timing of lhe implementation of the
restructuring;

& Verified the disclosure and presentation of financial
statemenl  in  accordance with Ind AS- 105
‘Noncured Assets held for sale and discontinued
aperations'

> Assossed the appropriateness and adequacy of the

relaled  disclosures in the consolidated financial
stalemenls of the Group in accordance with the
applicable accounting slandards.

[As a part of the altemative audit procedure, the Group

has made available the following information/ records/
documents/ explanalions to us through e-mail and remote
secure nelwork of the Group: -

a) Scanned copies of necessary records/documents
decds, cerlificates and the related records made available
electronically lhrough e-mail or remote secure network of
lhe Group; and

b) By way of enquiries Ihrough video conferencing,
dialogues and discussions over the phone, e-mails and
similar communication channels,

tLhas also been represenled by the management that the
dala and informalion provided electronically for the
purpose of our audit are correct, complete, reliable and
are direclly generaled from the accounting system of the
Company, extracted from lhe records and files, without
any further manual modificalions so as to maintain its
fnlegrity, authenlicily, readability and completeness. In
addition, based on our review of the various intemal audit
reportsfinspection reporls {as applicable), nothing has
come to the knowledge lhat makes us believe that such
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Other Information [or another title if appropriate
Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Holding "Company's Board of Directors is respo

_an allenate audi procedure would not be adequate.

such as “Information Cther than the Consolidated
II}

nsible lor lhe olher information. The other information

comprises the infermalion included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including
Annexures to Board’s Report, Corporale Governance and Shareholder's Infermation (hereinafter referred to as




“the Reports”), but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon,
The Report is expected to be made available lo us afler the dale of this audilor's report.

Our opinion on the consclidated financial stalements does nol cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion Ihereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consdlidated financial statements, our responsibility is fo read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing $0, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with lhe Standalone financial slatements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
ctherwise appears to be materially misslaled.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Direclors is responsible for lhe preparation and presentation of these
consclidated financial statements in term of the requirements ol the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and
fair view of the consclidaled financial postion, consolidated financial performance and consclidated cash flows
-of the Group including its Associales in accordance wilh the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group and of ils assodiales are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other wregularilies; the seleclion and application of appropriate
accounting policies, making judgments and estimates lhat are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a lrue and fair view and are Iree from malerial misstalement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have heen used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by
the Directors of the Holding Company, as aloresaid.

In preparing the consolidaled financial statements, 1he respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and of its asscciates are responsible for assessing Ine ability of the Group and of its associates to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, mallers related lo going concern and using the goeing
concem basis of accounting unless managemenl eilher intends 1o liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
of has no realistic alternalive but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible
_for overseeing the financial reporing process of the Group and of its associates.

Auditor’s Responsibililies for the Audil of the Consolidaled Financlal Statements

QOur ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whelher the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misslatement, whelher due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance wilh SAs will always detect a malerial misslatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expecled fo influence the economic decisions of users laken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgmenl and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audil procedures responsive to lhose risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our opimion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher lhan for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of inlernal conkrol,

« Obtain an understanding of inlernal control relevant to the audi in order lo design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumslances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible




for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate inlernal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effecliveness of such conlrols.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounling policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by inanagement.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whelher a malerial uncertainly exists relaled to evenis or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and ifs associates to continue as a going concem. If we
conciude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw altention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidaled financial stalements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our cenclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the dale of cur auditer's report,
However, fuiure events or conditions may cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going
concermn.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, struclure and content of the consolidated linancial staterments, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidaled lnancial stalemenis represenl the underlying transactions and
events in a manner thal achieves fair presenlation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group and its associales to express an opinion on the consolidaied financial statements.
‘We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of
such entities included in the consolidaled {inancial stalements of which we are the independent auditors. For
the other entities included in the consclidated financial stalements, which have been audited by other auditors,
such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out
by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstalements in the consolidaled financial slalements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that lhe esconomic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
consolidated financial stalements may be influenced. We consider quantitative maleriality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evalualing the results of our work; and (il} to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated lingncial statements,

We communicate with those charged wilh governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial slatements of which we are the independen! auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and Lming of the audit and sionilicant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in inlernal contral that we idenlily during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance wilh a statement that we have complied with relevant gthical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate wilh them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonahly be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicaled with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidaled linancial stalements of the curren! period and are therefore
the key audit matiers. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the malter or when, in extremely rare circumsiances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse conseqguences of doing $o would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public inlerest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

The consclidated financial slaternents also include (he Group's share of net profil/loss of Rs. Nil for the year
ended 31st March, 2022, as considered in the consolidaled financial slatemenls, in respect of 4 associates,
whose financial stalements have not been audiled by us. These financial staternents have been audited by
other auditors whose reporls have beern furnished lo us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statemenls, in so far as it relates lo the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
these subsidiaries and associates, and our report in lerms of sub-gsection (3) of Seclion 143 of the Act, in so far
as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, and associales, 5 based solely on Lhe reports of lhe other auditors.

;
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Our oplnion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Olher Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of Ihe above matters with respecl o our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other audilors and he financial statements / financial information certified by the
Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatery Reguirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Acl, we give in the “Annexure A" a slatement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 1o lhe exient applicable.

2 With respect to the olher matters to be inciuded in the Audilor's Reporl in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according lo the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to ils direclors during the year is in accordance wilh the provisions of
section 197 of the Act,

3.As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, {based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other
auditors on separate financial stalements and the other financial information of associates, as noted In the
other matter ‘paragraph Jwe reparl, to the exlen! applicable, that:

(a) We have soughl and oblained all the information and explanations which Lo the best of our knowiedge
and beliel were necessary for lhe purposes of our audil of the aforesald consolidated financial
statements.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of accounl as required by law relaling to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial stalements have been kept so tar as it appears from our examination of those
bocks and the repors of the olher auditors.

() The Consclidated Balance Sheet, lhe Consolidated Slaternent of Prolit and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Siatement and Consolidaled Statement of Changes in equitydealt with by this
Report are in agreemenl with the relevant books of account mainlained for the purpose of preparation
of the consoelidaled financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aloresaid consolidaled financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
. specified under Seciion 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the wrilten representations received from lhe directors of the Holding Company as on
31st March, 2022 laken on record by lhe Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of
the statutory auditors of ils subsidiary companies, associale companies none of the directors of the
Group companies and its associale companies is disqualified as on 31sl March, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,

(i With respect to the adequacy of inlermal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding
Company, its subsidiary companies and associate companies and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure "8"

(g) With respect to the other matlers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audil and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the besl of our information and
according to the explanalions given to usand based on the consideration of the report of the other
auditors on separate financial stalements as also the other financial information of the associates, as
noted in the other matler paragrapi




i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial posilion of the Group and its associales— Reler Note 38 to the consolidated
financial sialements.

ii. Provision has been made in the consolidaled financial stalements, as required under the
applicable law or accounling standards, for material foreseeable iosses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivalive contracls — Refer (a) Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements in respect of such items as il relales to the Group and its associates and (b) the
Group's share of nel profitfloss in respect of ils associales,

ifi. There were no amounls which were required (o be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and ils subsidiary companies, associate companies.

iv. (i) The management has represented thal, lo the best of iU's knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the notes to lhe accounts, no unds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed {unds or share premium or any olher sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company,
and its subsidiary companies, associale companies to or in any other person{s} or entity (ies),
including foreign entilies ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Inlermediary shall, whether, direclly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities idenlified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company, and its
subsidiary companies, associale companies ("Ullimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behall of the Ullimate Bencficiaries;

(i The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the notes lo the accounts, no funds have been received by lhe Holding Company, and its
subsidiary companies, associate companies lrom any person(s) or entity {ies), including foreign
entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Holding Company, and ils subsidiary companies and associate companies shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Parly ("Ullimate Geneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security
or the likke on behalf of he Ullimate Beneliciaries; and

(i) Based on the audit procedwres that has considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come o owr notice lhat has caused lhem to believe that the
representalions under sub-clause {0) and (i} contain any material misslaternent.

v. There is no dividend declared or paid during lhe year by the Holding Company, and its

subsidiary companies and associate companies

For Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co
Chartered Accountants
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph - 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Reguirements” of our Report of even date.)

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given by
the management and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit
and to the best of our knowfedge and belief, we report that; -

(xxi) = According to the information and explanations given to us, there have been no qualifications or adverse
remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (CARC) reports of
the companies included in the consolidated financial statements, except for the following:

Sr. { Name CIN Holding Clause number of the CARO
No, Company/subs | report which is
idiary/ qualified or adverse
Associate
@ |[(b) © (d) (e)
1 Inox Green Energy Services | U45207GJ2012PLCO7027 | Holding Clause ii (b), Clause vii (a), Clause
Limited 9 Company ix{d), Clause (xvii)
2 Aliento Wind Energy Private | U40300GJ2018PTC10058 | Subsidiary Clause vii(a} and Clause xvii
Limited 5 Company
3 Flurry Wind Energy Private | U40200GJ2018PTC10060 | Subsidiary Clause vii(a} and Clause xvii
Limited 7 Company
4 Flutter Wind Energy Private | U40300GJ2018PTC10060 | Subsidiary Clause vii{a) and Clause xvii
Limited 9 Company
5 Haroda Wind Energy Private | U40300GJ2017PTC09981 | Subsidiary Clause xvii
Limited 8 Company
6 Khatiyu Wind Energy Private | U40300GJ2017PTC09983 | Subsidiary Clause xvii
Limited 1 Company
7 Ravapar Wind Energy Private | U40300GJ2017PTC09985 | Subsidiary Clause xvii
Limited 4 Company
8 Ripudaman Urja Private Limited U40300GJ2017PTC09714 | Subsidiary Clause xvii
0 Company
9 Suswind Power Private Limited U40300GJ2017PTC09712 | Subsidiary Clause vii(a} and Clause xvii
8 Company
10 | Tempest Wind Energy Private | U40106GJ2018PTC10059 | Subsidiary Clause vii(a) and Clause xvii
Limited 0 Company
11 | Vasuprada Renewable Private | U40100GJ2017PTC09713 | Subsidiary Clause viifa) and Clause xvii
Limited 0 Company
12 | Vibhav Energy Private Limited U40106GJ2017PTC09823 | Subsidiary Clause xvii
Q0 Company
13 | Vigodi Wind Energy Private | U40300GJ2017PTC09985 | Subsidiary Clause xvii
Limited 1 Company
14 | Vuelta Wind Energy Private | U40106GJ2018PTC10059 | Subsidiary Clause vii(a) and Clause xvii
Limited 1 Company
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15 | Wind Four Renergy Private | U40300GJ2017PTC09700 | Subsidiary Clause vii(a) and Clause xvii
Limited 3 Company
16 | Nani Virani Wind Energy Private | U40300GJ2017PTC09985 | Subsidiary Clause xvii
Limited 2 Company
17 | Wind One Renergy Limited U40106GJ2017PLCO9708 | Associate Clause xvii
8 Company
18 | Wind Three Renergy Limited J40200GJ2017PLCO9E95 | Asscciate Clause xvii
6 Company
19 | Wingd Five Renergy Limited U40100GJ2017PLC09697 | Associate Clause xvii
3 Company

For Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co.
Chartered Accountants ==
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Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 13th May 2022




ANNEXURE - “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF Inox Green Energy Services Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Conlrols Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-gection 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

in conjunction with our audit of the consolidaled financial slalements of the Company as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2022, we have audited he internat financial controls over financial reperling of Inox Green
Energy Services Limited (hereinalter reforred 1o as "the Holding Company”) and ils subsidiary companies and
-its associate companies, which are companies incorporated in indiz, as of thal date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financiul Conirols

The respective Board of Direclors of the Holding ¢ompany, its subsidiary companies and its associate
companies, which are companies incorporaled in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial conlrols based on lhe intermal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
respective company considering the essential componenls of infernal controt slated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Inslitute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAl). These responsibililies include lhe design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operaling eflectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to lhe respeclive company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compleleness of the accounting recerds, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibilily

Our responsibility is o express an opinion on the Gompany's internal financial conlrols over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducled our audil in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of internal
_Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the "Guidance Nole™) issued by the ICAl and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable lo an audit of internal financial conrols, both issued by the Institule of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Slandards and the Cuidance Nole require that we comply with ethicai
requirements and plan and perform lhe audii lo oblain reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal
financial controls over financial reporling was established and mainlained and it such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audil evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporling included obtaining an understanding of inlernal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk hal a matenal weakness exisls, and lesting and evalualing the design and
operating effectiveness of infernal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks oi material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due te fraud or error.

We befleve that the audit evidence we have obiained and the audit evidence oblained by ihe other audilors in
terms of their reporis referred to in the Other Matlers paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audil opinion on the Company's internal financial conlrols syslem over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Guntrols over Financial Reperting

A company's internal financial conlrol over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reiiabilily of financial reporting and the preparation of financial stalements for external

purposes in accordance wilh generally accopled dccounting pinciples. A company's internal financial control

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures thal (1) pertain 1o the maintenance of records

that, in reasonable detail, accurately and (airly reflect the transaclions and disposilions of the assets of the

company; {2} provide reasonable assurance thal lransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
£,




of financial statements in accordance with generaily acceplted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and {3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internat Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent fimilations of internal tinancial conirols over financial reperting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management overnde of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and nol be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorale.

‘Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, ils subsidiary companies and its associate companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, have, in all malerial respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporling and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2022, based on ihe inlernat control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essenlial components of inlernal control siated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporling issued by ihe 1CA

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Seclion 143(3)({) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as i relates o 4 associate companies is based on the
corresponding repoits of the auditers of such comparnies incorporaled in India.

For Dewan P, N. Chopra & Co.
Chartered Accountants

irgn, Regn. No.

;

Mambership N
UDIN: 2250537 DR
Place of Signaturé=hab
Date: 13" May 2022




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (farmerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited}

CIN: U4A5207GJ2012PLCOT0279

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

(X in Lakhs)
. : As at Asat
Particulars NOWS  2iMarch2022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets .
{a) Property, plant ang equipment 5 < 95,296.56 76,450.33
{b} Capital work-in-progress Sa 13,282.82 25,093.94
{c) Intangible assets 6 ©. 087 155
{d} Financial assets
{i] Investments
-ln associates 7 3,251.00 3,251.00
{ii) Other non-current financial assets ] 50,957.97 47,340.86
(e) Deferred tax assets {net) 9 12,461.18 9,853.77
{f} Income tax assets (net) an 1,641,323 1,345.02
{g) Other non-current assets 10 860.00 1,482.73
Total Non - current assets 1,77,751.83 1,64,864.20
Current assets
{a) Invenlories 11 2,137.81 35,458.29
{b) Financial assets ' "
{1} Trade receivables 12 6,801.65 22,320.05
{if) Cash and cash equivalents 13 4,471.62 12,023.16
{ili} Bank balances other than (i} above 14 6,565.17 927.60
{iv} Loans 15 3,114.76 873.71
{v) Other current financial assets 8 2,221.73 4,031.98
{c) Other current assets 10 8,996.04 28,734.56
Total Cusrent assets 34,311.78 1,04,414.35

TOTAL ASSETS'
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2,12,063.61

2,69,278.55%
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INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited}

CIN: U45207GI2012PLCOT0279

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

{%in Lakhs)

. ’ As at As at
Particufars Notes .
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{a) Equity share capital 16 23,501.63 17,861.99
{b} Equity component of compound financial instrument 18(f) - 3,250.28
{c) Other equity 17 57,160.83 {11,857.20)
Total equity 80,662.46 4,295.07
LIABILITIES
Man-current liabilities
{a} Financial liabilities
{i} Borrowings 18 31,944.80 34,918.56
{il) Other financial lisbilities 23 - 480.23
(b} Provisions 19 219,25 200.87
{c} Other non-current liabilities 20 23,856.42 5,842.13
Total non-current Jiabitities 56,020.47 41,441.79
Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
{i) Borrowings 21 58,471.80 1,06,183.83
{ii) Trade payables 22
a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - £6.56
L) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 8,026.26 51,857.90
entarprisas
tiii) Other financial liabilities 23 1,827.57 30,001.25
(b} Other current liabilities 20 7,045.98 . 35,334.89
{c} Provisions 19 9.07 47,26
Fotal current liabilities 75,380.68 2,23,541.69
2,12,063.61 2,69,278.55

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The accompanylng notes {1 to 60} are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Dewan PN Chopra & Co.
" Chartered Accountants

Place : Mew Dethi
Date :13 May 2022

CIN : 06709232

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors

Director

. L4 -
Grum-Iatinoe
Govind Prakash Rathore
Chief Financial Cfficer

Place : Noida
Date: 13 May 2022

-

A k
vinegYvalentine Davis

Direttdr
DIN : 06709239

it

Pooja Paul
Company Secretary




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)

CIN: U45207GJ2012PLCO70279
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
L {% in Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended

Particulars NOteS 31 March2022 31 March 2021
Revenue -

Revenue from operations 24 17,216.63 17,224.74
Cther income 25 1,806.58 1,403.79
Total Revenue {I) 19,023.2% 18,628.53
Expenses

0&M, Common infrastructure facility expenses 26 4,829.57 5,390.37
Purchases of stock-in-trade ' 26a 2,219.83 -
Changes tn inventories 26k (776.48) -
Employee benefits expense 27 2,166.13 1,879.40
Finance costs 28 5,480.17 6,052.70
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 5,016.49 4,508.26
_Other expenses © 30 558.14 1,732.95
Total Expenses {1} : 19,493.85 19,963.68
Less: Expenditure capitalised - -
Net Expenses 19,493.85 1%,963.68
share of profit/{loss) of associates (111} - {1,892.14)
Profit before exceptional items and tax {1 - 1F+ 1l = V) {470.64) {3,234.29)
Exceptional itam (V) - -
Profit/{loss) hefore tax {IV-V=VI} {470.64) {3,234.29)
Tax expense {(VIl}:” 41

Current tax ) - -
MAT credit entitlement - -
Deferred tax - 24.46 {461.31}
Taxation pertaining to carlier years - -

24.46 (461.31}

Profit/{Loss) after tax for the year from continuing operations (VI-VII=VIN) {895.10) {2,772.58)
Discontinued operations (Refer Note 32)

Profit/{Loss) lor the year from discontinued operations . {10,941.59) {15,897.24)
-Other comprehensive income - {4.67) ©o13.92
Tax credi lrom discontinued operations {2,122.14} (3,404.02)
Profit/{Joss) from Discontinued operations [after tax) {IX} {8,824.52) (12,579.35}
erofit/{loss) after tax for the year [VIII4IX=X) (9,319.62} {15,352.28}
Other Comprehensive income

A (i) ltems that witl not be reclassified to profit or Joss

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation _ 44.02 1.00
Tax on above {15.38) . 10.36)
Total Other Comprehensive income (X} 28.64 © 0.64
Total Comprehensive income for the year [X + X1 {9,290.98) {15,351.64}

Profit for the year attributable to :

-Owners of Lthe company 19,319.62) {15,352.28)

-Non- Controlling interests ' - -
(9,319,62) {15,352.28)




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
CIN: U45207GJ2012PLCO70279

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
. [X in Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 . 31 March 2021

Particudars ' " Notes

Other Comprehensive income for the year from continuing operations
-Owners of the company 28.64 0.64
-Non- Controlling interests - -

28.64 0.64
Total Comprehensive income for the year
-Owners of the company {9,290.98) {15,351.64)
-Non- Controlling interests . -
{9,290.98) [15,351.64)
Earnings per share for continuing operations [Face value of 310 per share] 31
Basic carnings {not annualised) {in T} {0.25) {2.29)
Biluted carnings {not annualised) {in %} {0.25} {2.29)
Earnings per share for discontinued operations [Face value of X10 per sharc] 31
Basic earnings {not annualised} {in ) {4.47) {10.38}
Diluted earnings {not annualised} {in %) . ' {4.47) {10.38)

The accompanying notes (1 1o 60) are an'integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As pet our report of even date attached For and an behalf of the Board of Directors
For Dewan PN Chopra & Co.
Chartered Accountants_o= =
ts,
Qgﬁg%ls?_frg“‘

-

L .
Vineet tips Davls

“ Whole-time Director Direct
DIN ; 06709232 DN : 06709238
N
(o) Ratuie Qw%”
Govind Prakash Rathore Pooja Paul
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place ! New Delhi o Place : Noida
‘Date : 13 May 2022 Date : 13 May 2022




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
CIN: U45207GJ2012PLLAO70279

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022

tfl in Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
31 march 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Cash flows from operating activilles

Prolit/{loss) for the year after tax from continuing operations {#95.10) {2,772.90}
Profit/{iass) for tha year after tax from discontinued operations (8,815.85) {12,593.20]
Adlustments for:
Tax expense {2,097.69) 13,865.33)
Finance costs - 10,449.25 14,495.33
‘Interest income {212.43) {197.54)
Share of (profit}floss of associates - 2,643.35
Bad debts, remissions and liquidated d. B - 1,364.21
Allowance lor expected credit losses 3,555.85 1,596.03
Deprecialion and amortisation expenses 5,018.01 4,911.09
Net (gatnslfloss on derivative portion of compound financial instrument - {695.73)
Profit on sale of investment |81.61) -
Less on Disposal of Subsidiartes 993.78 -
Impalrment in value of inter-corporate deposit to subsidiary (4,719.36) -
Loss on sale / disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,160.23 4,833.40
Net {gains)/loss on Mutual Fund - 113.90}
5,651.13 10,105.41
Movements in working capital:
{Increasel/Decrease in Trade receivables 13,543,328 (1.777.66)
(Increase)/Decrease in Invenlories 30,581.99 637.22
{Increasa)/Decrease in Other financial assets [3,114.61) (5,705.60;
{Increase}/Decrease in Other assets 19,683.99 (3,194.80)
Increase/|Dacrease) in Trade payables (38,999.87) 11,697.48
Increasef{Docraase) in Other financial fiabilitles {2,148.96) {13,155.20}
Ingreasef{Decrease) in Cther liabilities {10,688.63) 4,698.30
Increasef{Decrease) in Provisions 17.03 127,60
Cash generated from operations 14,525.45 3,433.25
Income tases paid [422.45) 1,439.99
Net cash generated from nperating activities 14,103.00 4,873.24
Cash flows fram Investing activities
Purchase of progerty, plant and equipment {including changes in capital {14,953.43} [10,158.02)
WIP, capital creditors/advances)
Sale of Investment in subsidiaries & assoclates 278.52 [735.30)
[Purchase)fsale of mutual funds - 299.38
Interest recelved 1,866.70 174.20
tnter corporate deposits given 2,347 49 (241.51)
Inter corporate deposiis received back 824.25 L
Moverment In Bank fixed deposits [5.804.65) 136.82
Wet cash (used in) investing activities {15,341.12) (10,524,358}
Cash flows from financing activities .
Praceeds from non-current borrowings 30,339.77 30,787.78
Repayment of non-current borrowings [13,583.33) (24,656.18)
Proceeds from/f{repayment of) short tarm borrowings {net) (8.682.06) 23,492 66
Finance costs [14,387.80) {11,273.84)
Wet cash geacsated from financing activities (6,513.42) 17,350.38
Wet in¢reasef{decrease] in cash and cash equivalents (7,551.54} 11,699.24
Cash and cash equivalenls at the beginning of tha year 12,023.16 33167
‘On account consclidation adjusiment® - 5.62
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiary - {13.34]
Cash and cash equivalants at the end of the year 9,471.62 12,023.16




INOQY GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as Inox Wind infrastructure Services Limited)

CiN: U45207G12012PLCO7O279

Consolidated statement of cash flows Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(% In Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended Year ended

31March 2022 31 March 2023

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities during the year ended 31 March 2022

{% in Lakhs}
Particulars Current Noo Current Equity Share
borrowings barrowings Capital
Opening Balance 28,067.65 §7,750.05 11,621.30
Conversion of Debenlure into Equity - 120,000.00) 2,420.21
Conversion of ICD into Equity 140,000.00) - 4,859.51
Transfer through BTA {24,359.42) (6,500.00) -
Cash flows 18,682.06) 16,756.44 -
Interest expense - A4474.32 -
Interest pald/ Conversion in Equity 9,690.50 (6,420.,00) -
Converslon of ICD into Preference shares 20,000.00 - -
Others - - 3,299.92
Consolidation Adfustment - - -
Closing Balance 44,717,07 46,060.81 22,260.94
Changes in Babilities arising from financing activities during the year ended 31 March 2021
) {% in Lakhs}
Particulars Current Mon Current Equity Share
borrowing: bor ing: Capital
Cpening Balance 53,157.30 59,286.50 11,621.30
Conversion of Debanture into Equity - 110,000.00) 1,240.70
Cash flows 22,492 60 6,131.62 -
‘Interest expense 5.903.34 4,871.94 -
Interest patd - (5,442.94) -
Unwinding cost of compounding financial instrumeant - 2,903.00 -
Others - - -
Consotidation Adjustment 6,514.10 - -
Closing Galance 88,067.64 57,750.12 12,862.00
MNotes:

1 The above statement of cash flows has been prepared and presented under the indirect method.
¢ Components of cash and cash equivalents are as per Note 13
3 The accompanylng notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Dewan PN Chopra & Co,__ For anflan behalf of the Beard of Directors

~Zihole-tinieDirector
DIM : Q6709232

Grorsinl Rofno e
Govind Prakash Rathore Poo)a Paul
Chief Financial Dfficer Company Secretary

DIN : DE70923%

Place : Hew Delhi Place : Noida
Date : 13 May 2022 Date : 13 May 2022
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INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)

CIN: UAS207G)2012PLCO70279

Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

#. Equity share capital

{Xin Lakhs)
Changesin | Balance at the Changes in Balance
Equity Share | beginning of | equity share at the end of
Balance at the beginning of Capital dueto | the current | capital during | the current
the current reporting period prior period reporting the current reporting
eerors pericd period period
12,862.00 - - 10,639.64 23,501,694
Changesin |Balanceatthe] Changeslin Batance
. Equity Share | beglnningof | equity share at the end of
Balance at the beglaning of Capital dueto | the current | capltal during the current
the current reporting period prior period reporting the current reporting
Brrors period perind period
11,621.30 - - 1,240.70 12,862.00
B, Other egquity
% ins Lakhs)
Particuiars . Reserves and Surplus Non- Totat
Securlty Debentu Retained G i Controlling
Premi Redemptl earnings’ Reserve Interests
Resarve
Bolance as at 31 March 2020 8,289.88 1,200.00 [15,339.81] - (7.43) {5,257.36)
Additlons during the year:
Transfer on account of Redemplion of - (1,800.00) - 1,500.00 - -
Security Premlum 8.759.31 - - - - £,759.31
Stamp duty paid on increase of avthorised (26.80} - - - -
. 126.80)
share capital
#rofitf(Loss) fer the year - - [15,367.20} - - (15,367.20)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiary - - 1283 743 026
Other comprehensive income for the year, net - - 14,60 _ . 14.60
of income tax [*)
Adjusiment of consolidation - - - = - -
Totsl comprehansive income far the year 8,732.51 (1,300.00) (15,339.77) 1,800.00 Y43 (5,599.83]
Ealance as at 31 March 2021 17,022.39 - [30,679.58) 1,800.00 - [11,357.18)
Additions during the ycar:
Transler on account of Conversion of OCD . - 3,290,728 - 3,290.28
Security Premium 75,158.37 - - - - ¥5,158,37
Stamp duty pald on Increase of authorised (129.65) ) ) ) ) (139.65)
share capital
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - 2,319.62) - - {9.319.62}
Chther comprehensive income lor the year, net i B 23:64 B B 38.64
of income tax {*)
Tetal comprehensive income for the year 75,018.72 - [6,000,70) - - 69,018.02
Balance as at 31 March 2022 92,041.11 - {26,080.28) 1,800.¢0 - 57,160.83

{*} Other comprehensive income for the period ¢lassified under relained earnings is in respect of remeasurement of defined benefit plans.

Thz accompanying notes {1 to 60} are an integral parl of the consolidated finanzial statements.

s per our report of even date attached

For Dewan PN Chopra & Co.

Charlered Accounlanls —e=wo—-

Firm'g Geglstration Moy 9}&4?6“101{:\
. T

%)
D
S /

£

Place : Waw Calhi
Date : 11 May 2022

oD
DIN : 06709232

»

"+Whole-tire birector

Govind Prakash Rathore
Chief Financia! Officer

Place : Noida

Gate : 13 May 2022

an behalf of the Board uf Directors

Vinee iéf-u A

Ladnee

Direct:
DN : 06709239

e

Pooja Paul

is

Company Secretary




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly Known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Group Statements

Inox Green Energy Services Limited (“the Holding Company/ the Company”) is a public imited company incorporated in
tndia. These Consalidated Financial Statements {“the Statements”) relate to the Holding Company and its subsidiaries )

{collectively referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in associates.

The Group is engaged in the business of providing Frection, Procurement and Commissioning {“EPC”) services,
Operations and Maintenance (“O&M”) services, wind farm development services and Commeon Infrastructure Facilities
for WTGs. Consequent ta the Business Transfer Agreement (“BTA”) dated 31 Decemnber 2021, the Group is In the
business of providing Operations and Maintenance {“0&M”} services, Common Infrastructure Facilities for W1Gs and
in the business of generation and sale of wind energy (Refer Note 32).

The Holding Company is a subsidiary of Inox Wind Limited and its ultimate holding company is Inox Leasing and Finance
Limited,

The area of operations of the Group'is within india.

The Holding Compa_n\}’s registered office is located at Survey No. 1837 & 1834 ABS Tower, 2" Floor, Old Padra Road,
Vadodara- 390007, Gujarat, Indla.

2. Statement of compliance and basls of preparation and presentation
2.1 Statement of Compliance

These Consolidated Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”)
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

2.2 Basis of Measurement

These Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees ("Rs."}, which is also the Group’s functional
and presentation currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

These Consalidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the significant
accaunting policies,

Historical cast is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics inte account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair vatue for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these Consolidated Financial Statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within
the scope of Ind AS 17, and measurements that have some simiiarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in tnd AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
« Level 1inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
" access at the measurement date;
« tevel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observahle for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

2



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as Inox Wind infrastructure Services timited)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

« Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
2.3 Basls of Preparation and Presentation

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard initially adopted <
or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherte in use.

These CF$ have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied consistently to
all the periods presented in the financial statements.

Any asset or Hability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

» the asset/liability is expected to be realized/settled in the Group’s hormal operating cycle;

» the asset ls intended for sale or consumption;

« the asset/liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

« the asset/liability is expected to be realized/settled within twelve months after the reporting period

+ the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used 1o settle a liability for at

least twelve months after the reporiing date;

« in the case of a liability, the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at

. least twelve months after the reporting date.

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

For the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities, the Group has ascertained its normal
operating cycle as twelve months. This-is based on the nature of products and services and the time between the
acquisition of assets or inventories for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents.

These Consalidated Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors on 13
May 2022.

3. Basls of Consolidation and Significant Accounting Polices
3.1 Basis of consolidation

These Consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the financial statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries.

Contro! is achieved when the Group:

« has power over the investee;

« is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvernent with the investee; and
»  has the ability to use its power o affect its returns. :

The Holding Company reassesses whether or not it contrals an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one o more of the three elements of control listed above.

-Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Holding Company obtains contrel over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Holding Company loses control of the subsidiary. specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss from the date the Holding
Company gains control until the date when the Holding Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests, Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the nan-controlling interests having a deficit balance.




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly Known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting pelicies for like transactions and other events
in similar circumstances, If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the
Consolidated Financial Statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments
are made to that group member's Financial Statements in preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements to ensure
conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

All"intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and cash flows relating to transactions between

subsidiaries of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

3.1.1  Changes in the Group’s ownership Interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes In the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interest In the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount that the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the censideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group losses control of a subsidiary, gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as a difference
between (i} the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets {including goodwill), and labilities of the subsidiary and any hon-
controlling interests, All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income In relation to that subsidary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary {i.e,
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable Ind AS).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when the cantrol is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under Ind AS 109, or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate.

3.2 Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
“issued by the Group In exchange of control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recagnised In profit
or |oss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

« deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to.employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilitles or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

s assets {or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest In the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed,

In case of » bargain purchase, before recognising a gain in respect thereof, the Group determines whether there exists
clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. Thereafter, the
Group reassesses whether it has correctly identified alt of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and
recognises any additional assets or liabilities that are identified in that reassessment. The Group then reviews the
procedures used to measure the amounts that Ind AS requires for the purposes of calculating the bargain purchase. {f
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the gain remains after this reassessment and review, the Group recognises it in other comprehensive income and
accumulates the same in equity as capital reserve. This gain is attributed to the acquirer, If there does not exist ctear
evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase, the Group recognises
the gain, after reassessing and reviewing (as described above), directly in equity as capital reserve,

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
_entity’s net assets in the event of liguidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the nan-controlling’
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis Is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controiling interests are measured
at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another Ind AS.

when the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities resuiting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business cambination, Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding
adjustments against goodwill or capital reserve, as the case may be, Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional Statements obtained during the ‘measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not gualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or 8 liability is remeasured at falr value at
subsequent reporting dates with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
“remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss, Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

i the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised to reflect new Statements obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.

3.3 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
{see Note 3.2 above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any. '

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that Is expected to benefit from the synergles of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annuaily, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired, If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
it’s carrying ameunt, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allecated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognlsed directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subseguent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the profit or loss on disposal.
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3.4 Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence, Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating pelicy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies,

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these CFS using the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it Is accounted for in
accordance with Ind AS 105. Under the equity method, an investment in an assoclate is initially recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. Distributions received from an associate reduce the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate], the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
_extent that the Group has incurred fegal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's
chare of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee Is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised directly in eguity as
capital reserve in the period In which the investment is acguired.

After application of the equity method of accounting, the Group determines whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the net investment in an
associate and that event {or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows from the net investment that can
be reliably estimated, If there exists such objective evidence of impairment, then it is necessary to recognise impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.

When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impalrment in
accordance with Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with Ind A5 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discantinues the use of the equity method from the date when the Investment ceases to be an associate, or
when the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the former associate and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retalned interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initlal recognition in accordance with Ind AS 109. The difference between the
carrying ameunt of the assaciate at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in associate is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same basis as would be required if that associate had directly
dispdsed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liakilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method
is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity methed when an investment in an associate becomes an investment in joint
venture. There is no remeasurement to fair value upen such changes in ownership interests. When the Group reduces
its ownership interest in an associate but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit
or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating
to that reduction in ewnership Interest If that gain or loss would be reclassifled to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

ar
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When a Group transacts with an associate of the Group, unrealised gains and losses resulting frem such transactions
are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate. :

3.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised upon transfer.of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration which the group expects to receive in exchange for thase products or services.

«  Revenue from time and material and job contracts is recognised on output basis measured by units delivered,
efforts expended, number of transactions processed, etc. :

« Revenue related to fixed price maintenance and support services contracts where the Group is standing ready to
provide services is recognised based on time elapsed mode and revenue is straight lined over the period of

. performance.

+  Revenue from services rendered is recognised in profit or less in proportion to the stage of completion of
transaction at the reporting date and when the costs incurred for the transactions and the costs to complete the
transaction can be measured reliably, as under: .

« Revenue from EPC is recognised on the basis of stage of completion by reference to surveys of work performed.

« Revenue frem operations and maintenance and cormmon infrastructure facilities contracts is recognised over the
period of the contract, on a straight-line basis w.e.f. signing of contracts. :

"« Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits asseciated with the transaction will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Revenue is net of returns and is reduced for rebates, trade discounts, refunds
and other similar allowances. Revenue is net of goods and service tax.

+ Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts,
service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with
the customer,

» Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers, Revenue from subsidiaries is recognised based on
transaction price which is at arm’s length. Cantract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned
aver billings on contracts,

«  Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (enly act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional
right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

+ Unearned and deferred revenue [“contract liability”} is recognised when there is billing in excess of revenue.

» The billing schedules agreed with custemers include periodic performance-based payments and / or milestone-
based progress payments, Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period.

e inaccordance with Ind AS 37, the Group recognises an anerous contract provision when the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under a contract exceed the econamic benefits to be recelved.

«  Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements. The Group
reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis which the transaction price could
be allacated to a new performance obligation, or transaction price of an existing obligation could undergo a change.
In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a curnulative adjustment is accounted for.

Use of significant judgments in revenue recognition

+ The Group contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products and services to a
customer. The Group dssesses the products / services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance
obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to determine the
deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables.

« The Group uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance obligation.
The Group allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of the relative standalone
selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract. Where standalone selling price is not
observable, the Group uses the expected cost-plus margin approach to allocate the transaction price to each

_distinct performance obligation.

» The Group exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a peintin time
or over a peried of time. The Group considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as services are
rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to payment for
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performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the
customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

« Revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised using percentage-of-completion method. The Group uses,

judgement to estimate the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which Is used to determine the degree of
completion of the performance obligation.

« Contract fulfilment costs are generally expensed as incurred except for certain software licence costs which meet
the criteria for capitalisation. ‘Such costs are amortised over the contractua! period or useful life of licence
whichever is less. The assessment of this criteria requires the application of judgement, in particular when
considering if costs generate or enhance resources to be used to satisfy future performance obligations and
whether costs are expected to be recovered,

3.5.1  Other Income

+  Interest income from a financial asset is recognised on time basls, by reference to the principal outstanding at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate which exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on Initial recognition.

e« Insurance claims are recognised to the extent there is a reasonable certalnty of the realizability of the claim
amount,

« Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive payment is established. Interest income is recognised
using the effective interest method,

3.6 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, Alf other leases are classified as operating leases. The leasing transaction of the Group comprise
of only operating leases.

3.6.1 The Group as lessee

Payments made under operating leases are generally recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease unless such payments are structured to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate
for the lessars’ expected inflationary cost increases, Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

3.7 Borrowing costs .

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of

thase assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
3.8 Employee beneflts

3.8.1  Retirement benefit costs

Recoghition and measurement of defined contribution plans:

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plan viz. government administered provident funds and pension
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

)
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Recognition and measurement of defined benefit plans:

For defined benefit plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit methed, with

5

actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting period, Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains |

and losses, the effect of the changes ta the asset ceiling (if applicable} and the return on plan assets {excluding net

interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive

income In the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income s reflected

immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss

in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit

plan at the start of the reporting period, taking account of any change in the net defined benefit plan during the year as

a result of contributions and benefit payments, Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

» service cost {including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

« netinterest expense or income; and

s remeasurement

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit o loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits
expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs,

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities represents the
actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined benefit plans, Any surplus resulting from this calculation Is limited to the
present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans. :

3,82  Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave,
bonus etc. in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
in exchange for that service. .

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service,

Liabilities recognised in respect of other leng-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by employees up to
the reporting date.

3.9 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

3.9.1  Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit hefore tax’ as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years, items that are never taxable or deductible and tax Incentives. The Group's current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting perlod.

39,2  Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
Consolidated Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred

tax liabilities are generaily recognised for all taxable temporary differences, Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
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which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (sther than in a business combination) of assets and

liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. in addition, deferred tax

liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill,

' Deferred tax [iabllities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it Is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which the benefits of the temporary differences can be utilised and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future. :

The carrying amount of‘deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting pericd and reduced to the extent

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset te be recovered.

peferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the pericd in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
hy the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabiiities.

3.9.3  Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to reallze the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Group.

3,10 Property, plant and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment (PPE} that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition PPE are carried at cost, as reduced by accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any.

The Group identifies and determines cost of each part of an item of property, plant and eguipment separately, if the
_part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life
that is materially different from that of the remaining item,

Cost comprises of purchase price / cost of construction, including non-refundable taxes or levies and any expenses
attributable to bring the PPE to its working condition for its intended use. Project pre-operative expenses and
expenditure incurred during construction period are capitalized to various eligible PPE. Borrowing costs directly
attributable to acquisition or construction of qualifying PPE are capitalised.

Spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing eguipment that meet the definition of property, plant and equipment
are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their useful life. Costs in nature of repairs and maintenance are recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

) o*
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Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the Balance Sheet date, is shown as capital work In progress. Advances
given towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are disclosed as
Other Non-Current Assets,

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of PPE {other than freehold land and properties under construction)
legs their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The useful lives prescribed in Schedule
Il to the Companies Act, 2013 are considered as the minimum lives. If the management’s estimate of the useful life of
property, plant and equipment at the time of acquisition of the asset or of the remaining useful life on a subsequent
review is shorter than that envisaged in the aforesaid schedule, depreciation is provided at a higher rate based on the
management’s estimate of the useful lifefremaining useful life. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting peried, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for onh a prospective basis.

PPE are depreciated gver its estimated useful lives, determined as under:
» Freehold land is not depreciated.
» On other items of PPE, on the basis of useful life as per Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period
over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upen disposal or when no future econemic benefits are
expected to arise from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of praperty,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

3.11 Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amaortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
The estimated usefu! life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting pericd, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis, Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date {which is regarded as their cost), Subsequent to Initial recognition, intangible
assets acguired in a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets as above.

An intangible asset [s derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying ameunt of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
Estimated useful lives of intangible assets
Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:
* Software 6 years
'3,12 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carryling amounts of its tangible and intangible assets {other

than goodwill) to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss, If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
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“impairment loss {If any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group "
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or atherwlise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash '
flows have not been adjusted. If it is not passible to measure fair value less cost of disposal because there is no basis for
making a reliable estimate of the price at which an erderly transaction to sell the asset would take place between market
participants at the measurement dates under market conditlons, the asset’s value in use is used as recoverable amount,

If the recaverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When animpairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years, A reversal of an impairment loss Is recognised immediately In profit or loss.

3.13 Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of the cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted average cost
basis.

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, duties and taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from
tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition.

Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes the cost of materials, conversion costs, an appropriate share of
fixed and variable production overheads and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Closing stock of imported materials include customs duty payable thereon, wherever applicable. Net
realizable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

3.14 Provisions and contingencies

The Group recognizes provisions when a present obligation {legal or constructive} as a resuit of a past event exists and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying econemic benefits will be required to settle such obligation and
the amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration requlred to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. If the
effect of time value of money is materlal provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
prebably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot
be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of
outflow of resources embodying ecgnomic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are initially measured at fair value at the acquisition date. At
the end of subsequent period, such contingent liabilities are measured at the higher of the amounts that would be
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recognised In accordance with Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amountinitially ,
recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with Ind AS 18 Revenue, if any.

3.15 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group member becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments, Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial iabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value .
of the financial assets or financial labilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss. '

A] Financial assets
a) Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. On
initial recognition, a financial asset s recognised at fair value, in case of financial assets which are recognised at fair
value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other
cases, the transaction costs are attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset.

b) Effective interest method:

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest incame over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts {including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums.or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on jnitial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financlal assets classified as
at FVTPL. Interest income is recegnised In profit or loss and is included in the “Other income” line item.

¢} Subsequent measurement:

For subsequent measurement, the Group classifies a financial asset in accordance with the below criteria:

i. The Group’s business model for managing the financial asset and

ii. The cantractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Based on the above criteria, the Group classifies its financlal assets into the following categories:

i. financial assets measured at amortized cost:

A financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The Group’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is to hald financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, and '

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans, certain investments and other financial assets
of the Group. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The amortized cost of a financial asset is also adjusted for loss allowance, if any.
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ii. Financial assets measured at FVTOCk

A financial asset is measured at FVTQCI if both of the following conditions are met:

a) The Group’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding. '

Investments in equity instruments, classified under financial assets, are initially measured at fair value. The Group may,
on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Group makes such election
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity instrument are recognised as other income in
the Statement of Profit 2nd Loss unless the Group has elected to measure such instrurnent at FVTOCI,

The Group does not have any financial assets in this category.
iii. Financial assets measured at FVTPL:

A financial asset is measured at FVTPL uniess it is measured at amortized cost or at FVTOC! as explained above.

This is a residual category applied to ali other investments of the Group. Such financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Dividend income on the investments In equity Instruments are recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

d) Derecognition:

A financial asset [or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognized {i.e., removed from the Group’s Balance Sheet) when any of the following occurs:

i. - The centractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset explres,

ii. The Group transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially '
transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; '

iil. The Group retains the contractual rights to receive cash fiows but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash
flows without material delay to cne or more recipients under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement (thereby substantially
transferring all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset);

iv. The Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all risk and rewards of ownership and does not retain control

' over the financial asset.

In cases where Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the financial asset,
but retains control of the financial asset, the Group continues to recognize such financial asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement in the financial asset. in that case, the Group also recognizes an associated liakility.

The financial asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that refiects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

On derecognitien of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or ‘oss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been
recognised in profit or joss on disposal of that financial asset.

&) Impairment of financial assets:
The Group applies expected credit losses (ECL) madel for measurement and recognition of loss allowance on the

following:
i. Trade receivables
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ii.  Financial assets measured at amortized cost (other than trade receivables)
.ili. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCI)

In case of trade receivables, the Group follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL is
measured and recognized as loss allowance,

In case of other assets {listed as ii and iii above), the Group determines if there has been a significant increase in credit ,
risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. if the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an
amount equal to 12-month ECL is measured and recognized as ioss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance.

Subsequently, if the credit guality of the financial asset improves such that there is ne Jonger a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls}, discounted at the original effective interest
rate,

12-month ECL are a portion of the Iifetim-e ECL which result from default events that are possible within 12 months from
the reporting date, Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial asset,

ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined by a range of
outcomes, taking into account the time value of money and other reasonable Statements available as a result of past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

As a practical expedient, the Group yses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECL on its portfolio of trade receivables.
The provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables
and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At each reporting date, the historically observed default rates and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are updated.

ECL Impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expense/fincome in the
Statement of Profit and Loss under the head 'Other expenses’/'Other income’.

B] Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group member are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity In
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument,

i. Equity instruments: -

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilitles. Equity instruments issued by a Group member are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs, :

Repurchase of the Group's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments,

il. Compound financial instruments; -
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Compound financial instruments Issued by the Group comprise of convertible debentures denominated in INR that can
be converted to equity shares at the option of the holder. The debentures will be converted into equity shares at the
fair value on the date of conversion. -

The fair value of the liability component of a compound financial instrument is determined using a market interest rate
of a similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. This value is recorded as a liability on an amortised
cost basls until extinguished on conversion or redemption of the debentures. The remainder of the proceeds is
_attributable to equity portion of the instrument net of derivatives if any. The equity component is recognised and ,
included in shareholder’s equity {net of deferred tax} and is not subsequently re-measured, The derivative component
is recagnized at fair value and subsequently carried at fair valve through profit or loss.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognized in profit or loss {uniess it qualifies for inclusion in the cost of an
asset). In case of conversion at maturity, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is recognized.

iii. Financial Liabilities: -

a) Initial recognition and measurement;

Financial liabilities are recognised when a Group member becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the fair value.

k) Subsequent measurement;

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

"The Group has not designated any financial liability as at FYTPL other than derivative instrument.
¢} Derecognition of financial liabilities:

A financial liability s derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial [iability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing [lability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification Is treated as the Derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liabllity derecognized and the consideration paid is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

.16 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
a) Fair value hedge:

Hedging instrument is initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and is
subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Gain or loss arising from changes in the fair value of hedging
instrument is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Hedging instrument is recognized as a financial asset in
the Balance Sheet if its fair value as at reporting date is positive as compared to carrying value and as a financial liability
if its fair value as at reporting date is negative as compared to carrying value.

Hedged item is initially recognized at fair value on the date of entering into contractual obligation and is subsequently
measured at amortized cost. The gain or loss on the hedged item is adjusted to the carrying value of the hedged item
and the corresponding effect is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it
no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.

il
i
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Note 34 sats out details of the fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes.
-b) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in ?he fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. The gain
or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accurnulated in equity relating to {effective portion -
as described above) are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the
same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of
a2 non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, such gains and losses are transferred from equity {but not as a
reclassification adjustment) and included in the Initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-
financlal liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it
ne longer gqualifies for hedge accounting.

Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated In equity at that time remains in equity
and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is
no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immaediately in profit or loss. '

. 3.17 Assets classified as held-for-sale

Assets are classified as held-for-sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principaily through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and a sale Is considered highly probable, They 2re measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised. Interest and other expenses attributable to the
lisbilities of a disposal group classified as held-for-sale continue to be recognised. Assets classified as held-for-sale are
presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal group classified as held-for-
sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the balance sheet.

3.18 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding ¢during the period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as
bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equlty shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.19 Recent accounting pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below.

ind AS 16 = Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess net sale proceeds of items produced

over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable
costs considered as part of the cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this

(

N
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amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The Group has evaluated the amendment and there
is no impact on its consclidated financial statements.

Ind AS 37—Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets —The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling
a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract {examples would be direct labour, and materials} or an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts [an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an
item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract}. The effective date for adoption of this amendment
is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, although early adoption is permitted. The Group has evaluated the
amendment and the impact is not expected to be material.

4 Critical accounting judgements and use of estimates

In application of Group’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the directors of the Holding Company are
required to make judgements, estimations and assumptions about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources, The estimates and assoclated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised In the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
revision or future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a meaterial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and labilities within the next financial year.

a) Useful lives of Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE):

The Group has adopted useful lives of PPE as described in Note 3,10 above, The Group reviews the estimated useful
lives of PPE at the end of each reporting period.

b} Fair value measurements and valuation processes
The Group measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned above,

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have cccurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end
of each reporting period and discloses the same.

When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured
based on gquoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques, including the
discounted cash flow model, which Involve various judgements and assumptions. Where necessary, the Group engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.

Statements zbout the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the falr values of various assets and liabilities
are disclosed in Note 34,

‘¢) Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 {covID-18]:

The World Health Organization announced a global health emergency because of a new strain of coronavirus ("COVID-
19"} and classified its outbreak as 2 pandemic on 11 arch 2020. On 24 March 2020 the Indian government announced
a strict 21-day lockdown acrass the country to contain the spread of the virus, This pandemic and response thereon
have impacted most of the industries. Cansequent to the nationwide lock down on 24 March 2020, the Group's
operations were scaled down in compliance with applicable regulatory orders, Subsequently, during the period, the
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Group's operations have been scaled up in a phased manner taking into account directives from various Government
authorities. The impact on future operations wauld, to a large extent, depend on how the pandemic further develops
and it's resultant impact on the operations of the Group. The Group continues to monitor the situation and take
appropriate action, as considered necessary in due compliance with the applicable regulations.

The management has made an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the Group’s operations, financial performance
and position as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022 and year ended 31 March 2021 and has concluded that there
is no Impact which is required to be recognised in the financial statements, Accordingly, no adjustments have been
made to the financial statements.

d} Other assumptions and estimation uncertainties, included in respective notes are as under:

« Recognition of deferred tax assets Is based on estimates of taxable profits in future years. The Group prepares
detailed cash flow and profitability projections, which are reviewed by the board of directors of the Holding
Company. The Holding Company’s tax jurisdiction is India, Significant judgments are Involved in estimating
budgeted profits for the purpose of paying advance tax, determining the provision for income taxes, including |
amount expected to be paid / recovered for uncertaln tax positions — see Note 9 |
+  Measurement of defined benefit obligations and other long-term employee benefits: - see Note 35
« Assessment of the status of various legal cases/claims and other disputes where the Group does not expect any
material autflow of resources and hence these are reflected as contingent liabilities. Recognition and measurement
of provisicns and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources —
see Note 38 )
« ~Impairment of financlal assets — see Note 34
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5: Property, plant and equipment

k]

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Carrying amounts of!

Freehold fand 1,286.09 1,361.14
Roads 3,602.78 1,502.85
Plant and equipment 90,300.30 73,453.75
Furniture and fixtures 98.18 119.93
Vehicles 0.86 1.20
Office equipments 8.35 11.46
Total 95,296.56 76,450.33
Note: Assets mortgaged/pledged as security for borrowings: {%X in Lakhs)
Particular Asat As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Carrying amounts of: !
Freehold land 1,286.09 1,126.09
Buildings 3,602.78 1,502.85
Plant and equipment 90,300.30 73,441.17
Furniture and fixtures 98.18 119.93
Vehicles 0.86 1.20
Cffice equipment 8.35 11.46
Total 95,296.56 76,202.70

All title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of Company.
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SA : Property, plant and equipment

_ [% in Lakhs}
Particulars Land - Reads Pla.nt and Furniture Vehicles 0‘ff|cc Total
. Freahold equipment and Fintures Equipment i
Cost or deemed cost: ' T ' T '
Balance as at 1 April 2020 1,526.14 3,553.68 81,654.57 217.23 2.84 143.96 87,108.42
Additions - 1,365.11 568233 - - 3.52 7,050.96
Adjustiment (165.00} - (3,285.00) - - - (3,450,006}
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,361.14 4,928.79 [ 84,051.90 217,23 | 2.84 147.98 | 90,709.38
Additions 16000 3,399.74 20,548.26 - - 1.55 24,108.55
Disposal {235.05) - {28.26) - - - (263.31}
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,286.09 8,328.53 1,04,571,90 217.23 2.84 149.03 1,14,555.62
Accumulated Depreciation:
Balance as at 1 April 2020 - 2,185.70 " 7,497.63 73.97 1.30 126.99 9,885.59
Depreciation expense for the year - 1,240.24 3,271.13 23,33 0.34 9.03 4,544.07
Elirinated on disposal of Subsidiary - - [170.61) - - - (170.61)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 - 3,425.94 10,598,15 97.30 1.64 136.02 14,259.05
Deprecistion expense for the year - 1,295.81 3,689.35 21,75 0.34 4,66 5,015.91
Eliminated on disposal of Subsidiary - - {15.90} - - - {15.90)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 - 4,725.75 14,271.60 119.05 1.98 110.68 19,259.06
[% in Lakhs)
Land - Plant and Furniture Office
Net carrying amount Frechold Roads equipment and Fixtures Vehicles Equipment Total
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,361.14 1,502.85 73,453.75 118.93 1.20 11.46 76,450.33
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,286.09 3,602.78 90,300.30 58.18 . 0.86 8.35 95,296.56
Sa : Capital-Work-in Progress {CWIP) as at 31 March 2022
Amount in CWIP .
Particulars Lass than 1 ¥ear | 1-2Vears 2-3Years More than 3 Total
years
Projects in progress 9,095,380 2,651.90 68.30 1,447.64 13,263.64
Projects temporarily suspended - - - 19.18 19.18
Total 9,095.80 2,651.90 68.30 1,466.82 13,282.82
Capital-Work-in Progress [CWIEP) as at 31 March 2021
Amount in CWIP
Particulars Less than 1 Year | 1-2Years 2-3 Years More than Total-
3 years
Projects in progress 20,401.47 2,540.88 1,000.41 1,098.00 25,080.76
Projects temporarily suspended - - - 19.18 19.18
Total 20,401.47 2,510.88 1,040.41 1,117.18 25,009.94

3
)
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The Holding Company incorporated following wholly-owned subsidiaries (hereafter called as SPVs) under RIS {Request for Selection} for setting up wind
farm projects as awarded by Solar Energy Corporation of India {SECI). As on 31 March 2022, there are inter olig 12 5PVs In which project progress is as

below:

a) The extended scheduled commissioning date (SCob} of SPV "Nani Viranl Wind Energy Private Limited" was 12 September 2021, Consldering office
memorandum dated 17 March, 2022 issued by Ministry of New and Renewable Energy, the Holding Cornpany requested for the time extension In the
SCoD of the said project by 3 months vide letter dated 24 March 2022 and same is pending as on date. The management is in discussion with autherities
for necessary approvals/extension,

b For SPVs namely “Haroda Wind Energy Private Limited", "Khatiyu Wind Energy Private Limited”, "Ravapar Wind Energy Private Limited” and "Vlgodi
Wind Energy Private Limited”, the Holding Cornpany has flled petition on 22 March 2022 before Central Electricity Regulatory Commission [CERC), New
Delhi for termination of letter of award dated 03 November 2017, Power Purchase Agreament [PPA) dated 27 December 2017, for relieving from financial
implication and releasing of respective bank guarantees. The same is pending before CERC.

¢} Extension for Schedule commissioning date {(SCoD} Is requested from appropriate statutory bady for other SPVs {SECI Il & I¥) for 300 MW and as per

request, the respactive project s estimated to be completed in less than a year. .

Name of wholly-owned subsidiary {SPV) SECI Total CWIP as at
Tranche 31 March 2022
wind Four Renergy Private Limited . SECH
Haroda Wind Energy Private Limited SECHII -
Vigodi Wind Energy Private Limited SECI-H| -
Mani Virani Wind Energy Private Limited . SECH-II 11,308.04
Ravapar Wind Energy Private Limited SECI-H -
Aliento Wind Energy Private Limited ) SECIH 99.08
Flurry Wind Enargy Private Limited SECI-IN 99.08
Tempest Wind Energy Private Limited SECI-N 99.08
Vuelta Energy Private Limited ’ SECI-N 97.15
Suswind Power Private Limited SECI-IV 95.87
Flutter Wind Energy Private Limited SECI-IV 94,66

The estimated project cost has not exceeded to its original plan. For capital commitment refer note 43A(b).

£
b
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{% in Lakhs)
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Particulars

6 Intangible assets

Carrying amounts of:
Software 0.7 1,55

Details of Intangible Assets

Particulars Software Total

Cost or Deemed Cost B

Balance as at 1 April 2020 407.29 407.29
Additions . i
Balance as at 31 March 2021 407.29 407.29
Additions . .
Balance as at 31 March 2022 A407.29 407.29

Accurnulated amortisation

Balance as at 1 April 2020 38.72 38.72
Amortisation expense for the year 367.02 367.02
Batance as at 31 March 2021 405.74 405.74
Amortisation expense for the year 0.58 058
Balance as at 31 March 2022 406.32 406,32
Net carrying amount Software Total

Balance as at 31 March 2021 1.55 1.55

Balance as at 31 March 2022 0.97 0.97
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{% in Lakhs)

As at As at

Parti g
articulars 31 March 2022 31'March 2021

7 :Investment in Associates (Trade Investment}
Non-current

in equity instruments {unquoted)
- in fully paid-up equity shares of T 10 each
wind Two Renergy Private Limited- 3,25,10,000 equity shares {refer note {1}, (ii) & {lii}

3,251.00 :  3,251.00
below)

3,251.00 3,251.00

(i} The group has neither right to variable returns from its invelvement with the investee and nor the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee .

{ii) The group has entered into various binding agreements (including call & put option agreement and voting rights agreement) with
a party to, inter-alia, transfer the shares of such companies at a future date and defining rights of the respective parties. In view of
the provisions of these binding agreements, it is assessed that the group has ceased to exercise control over such companies in terms
of Ind AS 110: Consolidated Financial Statements. Therefore, the group has accounted for investment in such companies as
investment in ‘associate’ from the date of cessation of control.

{iii) The shares have been pledged by the group as additional security for loan availed by the respective associate company.

8 : Other financial assets

Non-current .
Security Deposit - 1,191.21

Non-current bank balances (from Note 14) 642.69 478.25
Unbilled revenue (See note below) _ 50,315.28 45,214.58
Others - 456,82
Total 50,957.97 417,340.86
Current

Unbilled revenue [See note below) ) 1749.12 4,031.98
Consideration Receivable on Project Undertaking Transfer Agreement (Refer Note 32(2}) 2.77 -
Consideration Receivable on transfer of Disposal group (refer note no 32{1}) 465.84 -

Total ' 2,221.73 ~ 4,031.98
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9 : Deferred Tax

‘fear ended 31 March 2022 Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Deferred tay assets ) 12,461.18 | 9,893.77
Year ended 31 March 2022
Deferred tax assets/{labilities} in relation to: Rs. in Lakhs
-Opening hatance |  Recog ised in Recognised in | Adjusted agalnst | Adjusted ag Closing balance
profit or loss other consolidation current tax
Particulars
camprehensive liabilicy
income
Property, plant and equipment 4,562.56 1,706.45 - - 6,268.02
Straight lining of O & M revenue [15,606.89) {288.85} 536.43 - (15,3%5.32)
Allowance for expecied credit losses 1,442.79 1,242.43 - 2,685.22
Defined benefit obligations 86.70 5.55 {12.88) - - 79.77
Equity compenent of Cormpound financial {1,758.25) 1,758.25 - -
instrument ‘
Business inss 16,651.59 (246.52] 35.40 - 16,440.47
DOther deferred tax assets 2,184.86 {2,080.02) - {89.23) - 15.61
Other deferred tax liahilities - - - - - -
7,563.36 2,097.69 {12.88) 482,60 - 10,130.77
MAT credit nntitlerment 2,330.41 - - - - 2,330.41
Total 9,893.77 2,097.69 {12.88) 482,60 | - 12,461.18
¥ear ended 31 March 2021
Deferred tax assets/fliabilities) in relation to: Rs. in Lakhs
Recognised in | Adjusted against | .
. idation Adjusted against
Particulars Opening balance Recognised in other consel current tax Closing halance
prafit or loss compiehensive
incame lahility
Propenrty, plant and equipment 1,667.13 2,895.43 - - 4,56'2.56
Stralght lining of O & M revenue {14,488.32) {1,118.57) B - {15,606.89)
Allowance for expected credit losses 754.64 648.15 - - - 1,442.79
Defined benefit obligations 81.17 13.37 (7.54) - 86.70
Equity component of Compound financial (1,758.25) - - - {1,758.25)
instrurment
Business loss 15,295.62 1,340.29 - 15.68 - 16,651.59
Other deferred tax assets 439.54 78.537 - - 518.41
Other deferred tax liabilities 1,658.85 7.60 - - 1,666.45
3,690.38 3,865.14 (7.24) 15.68 7.,563.36
MAT credit entitlement 2,230.11 - - - 2,330.41
Total 6,020,79 3,865.14 (7.89) 15,68 - 9,893.77

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets on Its unabscrbed depreciation and business losses carrled forward. The Group has executed long Lerm
Operation & maintenance contracts with the customers. Revenue in respect of such contracts will get recognised In future years as per the accounting
policy of the group. Based on these cuntracts , the group has reasonable certainty as on the date of the balance sheet, that there will be sufficient
taxable Income available to realize such assets in the near future. Accordingly, the Group has crealed deferred tax assets on its carried forward

unabsorbed depreciation and business lossus.

.~
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(NOX GREEN ENEAGY SERVICES LIMITED [formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastruclure Services Limited)

Notes to the ¢ lidatod financiak for tha year ended 31 March 2022
{% in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

94 : Income 13K assels [net)

HNon-¢yrrgnt

Income tax paid (net of provisions) 1,641.33 1,335.02 2
Pald under Protest ’ . 10.00

Total 1,641.33 1,345.02

10 : Other assels

Non-turrent

Capital advances BED.OD 262.62
Palances with government authoritias

- Balances in servlce tax, YAT and G5T accounts - 61831
Prepaymants - others - 0.20 .
Total 86000 1,982.73
Currant
Advanca to suppliers 2,510.47 20.154.78
Balances with government authorltles

- Balapces in Service kax, VAT & GST accounts® 4,733.74 7.391.90

- Pald undar Protest - 19,92
Prepayments - othars 1,492,423 956.17
Advance for Expenses 7430 20845
Other Recovarable 184.55 330
Total 6,996.04 285,734.56
*Subject 1o reconclation with 24 & 28 and includes GSTinput tag cradit blockad by the dep: ting % 640.00

Lakhs |31 March 2021 ¢ € 640,00 Lakhs)




INOX GREEN ERERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formurly known as tnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
Motes to the ¢ financial st {or the year ended 31 March 2022

{% in Lakhs)

As gt As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Particulars

111 Inventeries
{at lower of cost and nel realisable value]

Construction materials 2,137 E1 10,186.67
Work-in-progress* - 2531162
Total 2,137.81 35,498.29

*See Nota No, 51
12 : Trade recalvables (Unsecurad}

{Unsecured, considered good, unless ctherwise stated)

Current

Considerad good* 705331 26,449.75

Lasy: Allowance for expectad credit losses (248.56) 14.129.70)
Totai 6,804.65 22,320.05

*Agalng Refer Note 45

13 : Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

in Current accounls 447153 11,962 38
in Cash credit accounts - 57.10
Cash on hand 0.00 368
Total 4,471.62 12,023.16

14 : Other bank balances

Fixed deposils with original ity perlod of less Lhisn 3 monihs 4,049,232 -

Fixed depusils with original maturity pertod af more than 3 months but l2s51han 12 - 210.14

menths* '

Fleed depwsil with orginal maturity for more than 12 months® 3 158.54 1,19571
7.207.86 1,405.85

! di 2 - "Othar R i 3 o

Less! Amounl disclesod under Note ar Ainancial asiats-Non current’ 642.69 478,25

Totsl 6,5065.17 377,60

Motes:

40thar bank balshees include margin money daposits kepl as securlty agalnst bank

puaranteas as Under:

) Flrad deposits with orizlnal maturity for mare than 3 months but fess than 12 months - 210.14

b} Fixed deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 3158.54 1,195.71

15 : Loans

© Current

Int i its Lo i - idered gooo 3,114.7¢ B66.14

dntar-corporate deposiis 1o olher parties - 12.5%

Total 3,114.76 B78.71

)

]
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INOX GREEM ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formarly known ai lnox Wind {nfrastructure Services Limited)

HNotes 10 the ¢ lidated linancial st for the year ended 31 March 2022
(% in Lakhs)
Partlculars Asat Asat
actieua 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
19 1 Provisions
MNen-cusrpat
f for employee benefits (Refer Noie 35)
Gratuity 134.44 13167 i
Compensated absences ) 84,81 £9.20
Total 219.25 200.87
Quirent
F for employee benefits {Refer Note 35)
Grakuity 474 16.32
Compansated absences 433 30.94
Total 9.07 47.26
20 : Other Liabililies i
Non-turrant
|Income recelved In advance 23,856.42 5,842.13
Total 23,856.42 5,842.11
rrant .
Advances received from customars 2,074.29 31,825.40
Incoma racalved In advance 1,963.44 1,519.24
Siatutory dues and takes payable 1,227.11 2,040.15
) Othar Payablas 1,781.14 -
Totsl 7,045.98 35,384.89

fQ X
Jor o
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IHGX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known a5 Inox Wind {nfrastructure Services Limited)

Motes to the ¢ fidated financial st for the year ended 31 March 2022
(% In Lukhs)
As at As at
I
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
21 : Current borrawlngs
Sadured barrowings
From banks
- Cash Credil {*) 49139 745379
- Dver Draft **) - 18,289.30
- Working Capltal Demand Loand {* 7} 10,000.00 -
Rupee term loans
= Shon Term Loan 1,300.00 -
Unsecured borrewings
From related parties
-Inter-corperale deposils from hokling company (4) 1292565 62,3461
+1.01% Non-Canvertlble, Hon-Cumulative, Participating f Ile Prafi 20,000.00
Shares {NCPRPS) (Rafer Note 184)
Current malurities of nan-current borrewings (Rafer Note 18} . 13,991.69 22,734.67
. 58,708.74 1,10,802.37
Less! Disclosed under Hole 23: "Other current linzncial liabilities"
- Inierest aceruad but not due (236,94} [4,618.54)
Totat 58,471,680 1,06,183.83
Te il

*Cash credit Rs 491.39 Lakhs (Previous year Rs 4,953.79 Lakhstaken from yes bank carries intarast @ MCLR plus 0.35% agalnst
corporete guarantee of Gujaret Fluorochemical; Limited and First Parl Passu charge of Current assets K Sacond charge on
moveable fiked assels of the company.

** Gyar Orakt facilty N1l {Previous year Rs. 18,199.4% Lakhs) Laken from IDBI bank Limited carriss intarest @ MCLA plus 15hps
pa agalnst Fixed Deposit of Gujarsl Fluorochemicsls Limited.

Working captal damand ioan laken during the year amouniing te Rs. 10,000 Lakhs carrles jnterest @ MCLR plus 2 S0% agalnst
corporate guarantas of Gujarat

H Inter-corporate deposit Fram hokding company is unsecyred, rapayabla on demand and ¢arrles interast & 7.00% p.a. to
12.00%p.a.

For short tarm loan- terms of repayment and secdrities etc. Rafer Hole 18

22 : Trade payables

Cumrgnt

- Dues ta micro and small enkerptises - 6,56
- Dures to others® 2,026,256 51,857.90
Tolal 5,026.26 51,924,456
tAgeing Rafer Note d5a

Particulars 2021-22 030-21
Principal amount due to suppllers under MSMEL Act a1 the year.end - 6556
Interest accruad and due 1o supplisrs urdsr MSVED Act on Lhe abave amount, unpaid - 165
at the year and,

Paymant made to suppliers {olher than interest) beyond the appointad date during the - 116.76
yoar

Interast paid to suppliers under section 16 of MSMED Act during the year - -
|ntarast due and payable 1o suppliers under MSMED Act for paymants slready made, - 215
Intarast acerued and net paud to suppliers under MSMED Act up W tha year end - 15641
Note: The abova inf lon has baan disclosed in raspect of parties whith have baan identified on the basils of the
information avallable with the Group.

23 : Other financlal ahilistes

Non-cuyrdnt

Derivativa financial lizbilltles - 430.23
Total - 489.21
Current

Curront maturlties of non-current borrowings (Refer Note 19}

Interost accrued ’

- on borrowlng R 36209 4,717.93
- on advance from customars - 241567
Credilors fur capital expenditure 42519 59143
Consideration payabla for busi cambingli - 45.00
Purchase Consideration Payabla - -
Employee dues payables 364.86 1,356.65
Othar Payables - 20,6939.03
Expenses payables . 675.43 175.52

Total . 1,827.57 30,001.25




IWOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (farmerly known a5 Inox Wind infrastructure Secvices Limlted)

Hotes te Lhe Iidated I} 2! ts for the year andod 31 March 2022
16 : Equity shara capltal [Xintakhs}
Particulars Asnl Akl

2 £} March 203 31 March 2021

Authorised capital
20,00,00,000 equity shares of 4 10 each 30,000.00 15, 200.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up

23,50,16,258 equity shares of T 10 each 23,501.63 12 851,99
23,501.63 12,861.99

[a) Reconcllletion of the number of Equity shares outstanding at Lhe beginning and al the and of the year

Particulary Al at 31 Mareh 2022 Agat 31 March 2021

Ko. ol shares (% in Lakhs} No. of ma_ri-s j ) [%in Lakhs)
Cutstanding at the beginning of the year 12,86,19,927 12,861.99 11,62,12,979 11,621.30
Shares iswed during the year* 10,63,96,331 10,635.64 1,24,06,948 1,240.63
Cuistanding at the and of tha year 23,50,16,258 23,501.63 12,86,19,927 12,881.99

(b Rights, preferences and restcictions attached 10 aquity shares

The Campany has only one ¢lass of equity shares having par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each sharchokder is eligible far one vole per share hetd and entitled 10 recelve dividend as
declared from time 10 Ume. i the event of liguldation of the Company, the holders of equily shares will be entitled to recelve the remaining assats of the Company, in
ion of their sharsholdi

{¢} Shares haid by holding company

Parliculars . At al 31 March 2012 As 8l 31 March 2021

Ho. of shares I% In Lakhs) No. of shares 1% i Lakh)
Inox Wind Limited(*) 22,05,31,71 22,053.17 12,65,72,781 12,657.28
[d} Delalls ol shares held by each sharchalder holding mere than 5% shares:

A3 at 33 Mareh 2022 A at 31 March 2021

Neme of Sharehaotdor

No. of Shares % ol holding No. of Shares % of holding
Tgx Wind Limited(*] 22,05,31,701 93.84% 12,65,72,781 98.41%

{1} Including shares held through nomlnee shareholdars.

(e} Allotment of Equity Shares by way of Conversion

Tuirlng tha year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has converted its $1h & 5th trenches of debentures amounting to 1 10,000.00 lakh each into 2,48,01,587 numbar of
shares and unsecurad dabt amounting to X 39,187.57 Lakh into 4,85,95,701 number of thares a1 a prics of X 80.647 per share.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, tha Company has converted it's 3rd trenches of debentures amounting to *t 10,000.00 lakhs each Into 5,88,23,529 number of shares at
a prite of § 80,60/per share,

{1} aligiment of Equity Shares in liew ol other than Cash Consideratlon
Guring the year anded 31 March 2022, the company has eued 3,29,99,043 number ol shares al a price of 180,84, per share, for a consideralion other than cash in lieu of the
debtfliatillly/provisiens owed to the allotteas on account of recedpt of matzrial / tervices § others § interest etc. from lime 1o tma.

(¢} Sharcholding of Promaters as under:
Az at 31 March 2022

omoters at the end ol the year % Changes during
Promater Name No. of Shere %ol 1otal Share the year
Inoy. Wind Limiked 220531,701 23.84% -4.57%
22,05,31,701 53.84% -4.57%
As st 31 March 2021
thare huld by promotars at Lhe ond of the year % Changes during
Promoter Name No. of Share %ol tetal Share the year
Inox Wind Limiled 12,65,72,781 98.41% -1.56%
Tatal 12,65.72,781 53.41% -1.59%




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

17 ; Other equity

{Zin Lakhs}
. As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Security Premium 52,041.11 17,022.38
Retained earnings {36,680.28) {30,679.58}
General reserve 1,800.00 1,800.00
Total 57,160.83 {11,857.20})
17 (i) Debenture redemption reserve
Balance at beginning of the year - 1,200.00
Less: Transfer to General Reserve on redemption of debenture - {1,800.00)

Balance at the end of the year - . -

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the company bas redeemed the redeemable non convertible dehenture accordingly
debenture redemption Reserve has been transferred to General reserve. : )

17 (il) Security Premium:

Balance at beginning of the year 17,022.39 8,289.88
Add: Additlon during the year 75,158.37 8,759.31
Less: Stamp duty pald on increase of authorised share capital {139.65) {26.80}
Balance at the end of the year 92,041.11 . 17,022,39

17 {iii} Retained eafnings:

Balance at beginning of the year {30,679.58) {15,339.81)
Profit/{loss) for the year (9,319.62) {15,367.20)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 28.64 14.60
Transfer on account of Conversion of Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCDs}* 3,290.28 -

Eliminated on disposal of subsidiary . 12.82
Balance at the end of the year {36,680.28) {30,679.58}

. *As mentioned in note 16(e} of the Consolidated Financial Information, the Company has redeemed the all tranches of OCDs by way
of conversion into its equity shares and accordingly Equity component has been transferred tc Retained Earnings.

The amcunt that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders is determined based on the separate
financial statements of the Company and alsc considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts
reported above may not be distribulable in entirety.

17 {iv) General Reserve:

Balanze at beginning of the year 1,800.00 .
Add. Transfer on account of redemgption of debentures : - 1,800.00

Balance at the end of the yaar 1,800.00 1,800.00




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as Inox Wind Infrasicucture Sarvices Umlted)

Holas ta the ¢ lldated lnancal for the year ended 31 March 2022
18: Nen current barrowings [% in Lakhs}
AS at As ol
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
'
Sccured loans
3| Debentures
9.50% Red ble non ¢ Ible del [N} 11,950.591 1539245
b} Rupee term loans
From banks 15,351.26 583617
From Financial Institution 16,439.75 10,000.00
<) Working capital tarm loans
Fram banks 231837 241703
Unsacured loans .
) bebentures
Opticnalky cnnulerlibla debentures - Liabillty portlon of } 20,104,33
compound lnanclal instrument
Total 46,060.89 57,740.58
Less: Dis¢lased under Naote 21 current borrowings
- Currant maturlties of non-currant borrowlngs {13,991.65} 122,734.67)
Less: Disclosed under Note 23 Other curren financial Nabilitles -
- Interest accrued ’ {124.40} [96.75}
Total 31,944.9¢ 34,918.56

Tarms of repaymant and securlties ele,

) 9.50% Redecmable non tonverlibie debenturas [NCDs|

1y 195 non ¢ ible red bla deb ol 10 Lakhs each fully paid up are issued at par, and carry intarast @ 9.50 % p.a,
payable saml annually. The maturity patlern of the debenlures is a5 under:

Month Principal Printipal
Sep-21 . 3,500,00
Mar-22 - 4,000.00
Sep-22 4,000.00 4,000,00
Mar-23 4,000.00 4,000.00
Sep-23 4.080.00 4,000.00
Tatal 12,0000 19,500.00

Firsi pari passu charge on all the movable fied assets and first ranking exchusive charge on the immavable property of the lssuer
situated fn the districes of Amrell, Surendranagar and Rajkot In Gujarat. NCDFs are further secured by an uncondilional, irrevocable
and inuing C from "Guljarat Fleorochemleals LLd™. ’




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED [Hormerly known as inox Wikd Infrastructure Services Lirmited)
Motes to the ¢ lidsted livandial Tor the year ended 31 Merch 2022

b} Rupee 1erm loan from ICICI Bank Lid-
Warking caplial long term loan is secured by seLond pari passu charge on exlsting & luture movable fixed 2ssels and current assets
to Yes Bank carrles inleresl MCLR+2.5% p.a, Principal repayment paltern of the [gan is a5 under;

1%in Lakhs)

Month Princtpal Principal *
Apr-22 29167 -
May-22 L6}

Jun-22 291.67 -
Jul-zz 9167 -
Aug-22 291.67 -
Sap-22 - . 19167 -
Qck-22 29167

Hoy-22 291,67 -
Dec-22 9167 -
lan-23 291.67

Feb-23 9167 .
far-23 291,67

Apr-23 9167

May-23 291,67

Jun-23 201.67

Jul-23 367 -
Aug-23 . 291,67 B
Sep-23 . 967 -
Get-23 . 29167 -
Hoy-23 291.67 -
Dac-23 ] 291.67 ) -
fan-24 29167 B
lab-24 29167 -
Mar-24 29167 -
Apr-24 201,67

May.24 1567 -
Jun-24 291,67 -
Jul-24 9167 -
Aug-24 208.33 -
Sep-24 0833 -
Oct-24 208.33 -
Nov-24 20833 -
Drec-24 208.33 -
lan-25 208.33 -

Tonal ’ 9418.67 -




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inod Wind Inltastruciure Servicas Limlted)

Moles to the ¢ tidatad financial Tot ihe yoar ended 31 March 2022

] Rupee term 1oan ram indusind Bank Lid:-

Rupee term lnan is 1akan from Indusind Bank Lud s secured by second parl passu charges on the tutrent assets, cash Mows and
recalvables both present & Future of the Company and carries Interest @ MCLR plus 0.20% p.a. Principal repayment patiern of Lhe
Ipan Ls a5 under;

Month Principal Principal
Mar-21 o - 40000
Jun-2t - 400.00
Sep-21 ) - 500.00
Dheg-21 . 50000
Mar-22 ' - 500.00
Jyn-22 SOuh, 00 500,00
Sep-22 500,00 S00.00
Total 1,800.00 3,300.50

dj Rupee term 1oan Irom Yas Bank Lud:

Rupee term loan taken from Yes Bank Ltd is secured by untanditional and irrevocable corporate guaraniee from Gujarat
Nuarochemicals Limiled and second chargs on existing and fulure movable {lued assets of the Group and carrles Interest @ 2.85%
p.a. Principal repayment pattern of the loan s as under:

Menth Principal Principal
Jub-21 - 250.00
Totsl ) B 250,00

#) Working capltal fong tesm loan from Yas Bank Lid:

Working capltal long term loan it 3ecured by sacend parl passue charge on exlsting & fulure moyvabla fixad assets and current
assets 10 Yes Bank carrlas Interast MCLR#1% with a capping @ 9.25% p.a. 100% credit by Kational Credit

Trust Company Limfted. Princtpal repayment pattern of the loan is as uader;

Wonth Principal Piincipat
Fab-22 - .00
Mar-22 - 50.00
Apr-22 0.00 50.00
May-22 - 50.00 50.00
Jun-22 : - 5000 50.00
Jul-22 - 5000 5000
Aug-22 50.00 50.00
Sep2 S0.00 S0.00
Cct-22 50.00 50.00
Hov-22 50.00 50.00
Dec-22 i 50.00 50.00
Jan-23 : 50.00 50.00
Feb-23 50.00 S0.00
Mar-23 50.00 58.00
Apr-23 50.00 50.00
May-23 50.00 s0.00
Jan-23 5000 50,00
Jul-23 30,00 50,00
Aug-23 EQ.00 50,00
Sep-23 50,00 50.00
Qet-23 ) 50,09 50.00
Nov-23 ' 50.00 50.00
Dec-23 . 50.00 50,00
Jan-24 E0.00 50.00
Feb-24 50,00 50.00
Mar-24 50.00 . 5000
Apr-24 50.00 50.00
May-24 50.00 50.00
ln-24 50.00 50.00
al-24 50.00 50.00
Aug-24 50.00 50,00
Sep-24 5000 5000
Qet-24 30.00 5000
Hoy-24 T BOuoo 50.00
Dec-24 | 50.00 LLixi ]
Jan-25 50.00 S0.00
Fab-25 . 50,00 50.00
Mar-25 50,00 50,00
Apr-25 50,00 S0000
May-25 50,00 50,00
Jun-25 50,00 S0.00
Jul-25 50.00 50,00
Aug-25s 50,00 50.60
Sep-ds 50.00 50.00
Oct-25 £0.00 50.00
Noy-25 50.00 50.00
Dec-2% 50.00 50.00
Jan-26 50.00 50.00
Tolal 2,300.00 2,400.00

|
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INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known 35 Inox Wind infrastructure Servlces Limited)
Noles to the fdaiad fi 1al siat for Lhe year ended 31 March 2022

flo Iy € Itla Dab {0CDs] (unsecured) :
The debentures of X 1,000 £ach, fully pald up, are issued Lo the holdng Company. at par, and carry Interest @ 4% p.a, The entlre
amount of debentures Is convart|ble into lully pald up equfty shares of T 10 each at tha option of tha debenture holder, at the end

of the tarm of the respective debentures. The equlty shares will be issued at the price as per the valuation report to be obtalned at
each ¢ ion dale, If hol ¢ 1, the det are red blg ot par. The maturily patiers of Lhe debentures [s as under:
For the year ended 31 March 2621
Debentura Series Date of allctment K Ity Humber ol Amount
Partod Dabanluras 1% In Lakh)
Saries F i 17th Noy, 2015* 7 years 10,00,000 10,000.00
Series D Eth Nov. 2015 € years 10,00, 00 100, (000
Total 20,600,000 20,000.00
* Serles E OUDs with date of alk 17K ber 2015 and y perfod 7 vears ware premature convarted Inls equily
shares of 110 each during the year ended 31 March 2022,
The op Iy convertible deb are p d [n the balance sheet as follows:
particular As at Asal
rHiculars 31 March 2022 34 March 20217
Face value of debantyres |ssued - H,000.00
Lass: Equity comp t of optionally < ible rab 503162
- 14,968 .38
Less: Derivative portlon ° - 480,23
- 14, ABE.15
Add: Effect of unwinding cost, gain/loss on darivative porlion and
interesl pajd - 5.616.18
- 20,104.33
. N P Lle deb
Equily comy nfop ¥ . 503162

* The equity component of optienally convertible debentures has been preeated on the face of the haance sheet net of deferred
tax of Rs, 1,741.34 Lakhs,

£) Rugtee Term loan from HOFC
Term Ioan is raken from HDFC Bank by {rist parl passu chargss on the plant and mackinery of the Company and carries Intarest
MCLR+1 p.a, Rasirlead to 9.5% Princlpal repaymenl pattern of the loan [s as under;

(% in Lakhs}

Month ) Pelnelpal Princlpal
Apr-23 416.67 -
May-23 416.67 ) -
Jun-23 i 418.67 ' -
Jul-23 , £14.87 -
Aug-23 416.67 .
Sap-23 116 &7 .
Oct-23- 116,67, -
Nov-23 116.67 -
Dec-23 416,63

Jan-24 . 116,67

Feb.24 416.67

har-24 416.67

Tolal 5,000.00 -

b Rpee Tarm Lean from Power Financa Cozparation [31 March 2022; %16,439.75 Lakhs, 31 March 2221 1%10,000 Lakhs)

Hate

The rate of Intarest is 10.50 % , with 1 year reset as per PFC podicy.

Repayment of Lean: .

The h an shall be repald in 204 structured monthly Instalmant, paysbls on datd due dates, ¢ ing frorn the standard
dua date, falllng 12 months after scheduled Commissioning dale {COD) of the project ar COB, whichever Is earfler.

bl i ation of bk ies Including plant &

aj First charge by way of aver all the | prop an hyr prop
machinery, machinery spares, eguipmenl, Ingls A accessories furniture & fixtures, vehiclos, over all the Intangible, goodwill,
uncalled capital and {irst charge an oparaling cash flows, book dobis, recelvables, comnissions, revenyes,

Crllatergl Security:
a) Pledga 51% aquity shares & 51% of compulsory convertibla debenturas {CCDs} of the Company
bj D5RA: 2 [Two) quarters of printipal & inlerest payment

a) Pledge over add(lional 26% equity shares & 26% of CCDs till treatlon and parfection of security,
b} Corporete Guarantee of Inox Wind Limited B




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
Notes ta the consotidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18A : Preference share capital

[%in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
. Authorised capital
20,00,00,000 (31 March 2021: Nil) 0.01% Non-Convertible, Non-Cumulative, Parficipating, Redeemabie 20.000.00

Preference Shares of % 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up
20,00,00,000 {31 March 2021: Nil) 0.01% Non-Convertible, Non-Cumulative, Participating, Redeemable

Preference Shares of X10 each 20,000.00

{a) Reconciliation of the number of 0.01% Non-Convertible, Non-Cumulative, Participating, Redeemable Preference Shares outstanding at the beginning
and at the end of the year:

.l_\s at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No. of shares {% in Lakhs) Mo. of shares % in Lakhs)
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year - - - -
Shares issued during the year " 20,00,00,000 20,000.00 - -
Quistanding at the end of the year 20,00,00,000 20,000.00

{b} Rights, preferences and restriclions attached to 0.01% Non-Convertible, Non-Cumulative, Participating, Redeemabla Preference Shares:

The Company has only one class of preference shares having par value of % 10 per share. These preferene shares are baaring coupon rate @0.01% and are

. Non-Convertible, Noen-Cumulative, Participating, Redeemable Preference Shares [NCPRPS), fully paid-up, at par. These preference shares shall be redeemed at
any time within a period of 5 years from the date of allotment and subscriber to these NCPRPS also has right to demand the redemption at any time within a
period of § years from the date of allotment, These NCPRPS shall rank for dividend in priority to the Equity Shares of the Company and the holders of NCPRPS
will be entitled to receive a participatory dividend in a financial year in which the Company pays dividend to its equity sharcholders (Participatory dividend).
such participatory dividend will be payable at the same rate as the dividend paid on the equity shares. NCPRPS shali, in case of winding up, be entitled to rank,
as regards repayment of capital and dividend (if declared by the Companyl, up to the commencement of the winding up, in priority to the equity Shares and
shall alse be entitled to participation in profits or assets or surplus funds, on the event of winding-up which may remain after the entire capital has been
repaid. Holders of NCPRPS shall be pald gividend on a non-cumulative basls, NCPRPS shall not be convertible inte Equity Shares, shalt not carry any voting
rights, shall be redeemable at par at any time within a period not exceeding 5 {five] vears from the date of allotment as per the provisions of the Companles
Act, 2013,

{¢) Allotment of NCPRPS by way of Conversion
During the year, the Company has converted unsecured debt amounting to % 26,000.00 Lakhs Into 20,00,00,000 nurnber of shares at a price of X 10/ per share.

(d) Sharas held by bolding company

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No. of shares {in Lakhs) No. of shares (% in Lakhs)
Inox Wind Limited 20,00,00,000 20,000.00 - . -
{e) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
Asat Asat
Name of Shareheldet 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No. of Shares % of holding No. of Shares % of holding
Inox Wind Limited 20,00,00,000 100.00% - -
() Shareholding of fromoters as under:
As at 31 March 2022
Share held by promoters at the end of the year % Changes during
Promoter Name No .of Share %of total Share the period
Inox Wind Limited ’ 2,00,00,00,000 100.00% 100.00%
Yotal 2,00,00,00,000 100.00% 140.00%
As at 31 March 2021
Share held by promaoters at the end of the year % Changes during
Pramoter Name No .of Share %of total Share the period
tnox Wind Limited - 0.00% 0.00%

Total . - 0.00% 0.00%




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
~Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 march 2021
24 ; Revenue from Operations
Sale of services 15,773.28 17,188.10
Other operating revenue 1,443.35 36.64
Total 17,216.63 17,224,74
25 : Other Income
a} Interest income
Interest income calculated using the effective interest method:
on fixed deposits with banks 95,17 86.48
Cn Inter-corporate deposits 87.23 88.75
Cn long term investment - -
Other interest income -
On Income tax/Vat refunds - 150.09
CBG interest income 22.19
204.59 325.32
b} Other gains
Net galns on derivative portion of compound financial instrument - 695.73
c) Gain on investment carried at FVTPL
Gain on fair valuation of investment in Mutual Fund - 13.90
d) Other non operating income
Insurance claims - 352.99
Misc Balances Write Back - 15.85
Profit on sale of Investment 81.61 -
Profit on cancellation of O&M Contract 520.38 -
Other Income 1,000.00
Total 1,806.58 1,403.79




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inox Wind
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Rs. in Lakhs
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
26 : EPC, O&M, Common infrastructure facility and site development expenses
Construction material consumed : 672.08 286.65
Equipments & machinery hire charges 38.91 : 35.98
Subcontractor cost 0.60 -
0&M repairs 1,116.56 1,582.06
Legal & professional fees & expenses 360.86 50.33
Stores and spares consumed 361.90 1,006.34
. Rates & taxes and regulatory fees - 0.29
Rent 122.70 138.49
Labour charges 215.18 64.71
Insurance 347.07 444.26
Security charges ' 723.47 805.86
Travelling & conveyance 781.72 880.49
iMiscellaneous expenses 88.52 94.91
Total 4,829.57 5,390.37

26a; Purchase of stock in trade

Purchases of stock-in-trade 2,219.83 -
Total 2,219.83 -

Curing the year ended 31 March 2022, material amounting to X 2,219.00 lakhs related to transferred undertaking has been
received by the Holding Company and same has been accounted as a purchase of stock in trade and the has been booked and
_ transferred to RESCO,

26b: Change in inventory

Opening Stock
Project inventory - -

Less ; Closing Stock
Project inventory . 776.48 -
{(Increase) / decrease in stock (776.48)

27 : Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages 1,767.3% 1,459.67
Contribution to provident and other funds 78.02 77.86
Gratuity 51.37 59.79
Staff welfare expenses 269.35 282,08
Total i 2,166.13 1,879.40

)
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INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inox Wind
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

28 : Finance costs .
a} Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Interest an borrowings
Interest to refated parties
Interest to related parties
b) Other interest cost
Interest on delay payment of Taxes
Other interest

c) Other borrowing costs
Bank Guarantee Charges

Corporate guarantee Charges
d} Unwinding cost of compound financial instrument
Total

29 : Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
" Total

30 : Other Expenses

Directors' sitting fees

Rent

Legal and professional fecs and expenses

Allowance for expected credit fosses

Liquidated damages

Loss on Convesion of Optionally Convertible Debentures
Interest on TDS

Miscellaneous expenses

Total

4,474.32 2,535.34
104,40 ‘ .
45.34 -

. 1.2t
291.73 355.58
564.38 257.22

- 2,902.95

5,430.17 6,052.70
5,015.91 4,541.18
0.58 367.08
5,016.49 4,908.26
9.80 5.40
6.25 2.87
53.42 191.78
146,96 34.65

- 1,364.81
200.28 -

- 1.76
141.43 131.68
558.14 1,732.95




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limlted)

Notes to the consclidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

31. Earnings per share

Particulars

Year ended

31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Basic earning/[loss) per share

Net Profit/{loss) for the year attributable to the equity share holder from continuing operations (X
in lakhs)

Nat Profit/{loss) for the year attributable to the equity share hokler from discontinuing operations
{%in lakhs)

Weighted'average number of equity shares used in calculation of basic EPS [Nos)
Weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of diluted EPS (Nos.}

Basic earnings per share ¥10 each {for continulng operations) {not annualised) {in X}

Diluted earning per share %10 each {for continuing eperations} (not annualised) {in 3)

Basic earnings per share %10 each {for discontinued operations) {not annualised} (in )
Diluted earning per share 10 each {for discontinued operations) (not annualised) {in'X)

Note: The anti-dilutive effect for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 1s ignored.,

(495.10)

{8,819.85)
19,71,30,861
19,71,30,861

{0.25)
{0.25)

(4.47)
(4.47)

{2,772.98)

{12,593,22)
12,13,45,716
15,34,33,823

(2.29)
{2.29)

(10.38)
(10.38)




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as Inex Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

32 : Note on Discontinued Operations:

1. $lump Sale of the Erection, Commissiening and Procurement Business [referred to as ‘EPC Business’):

On 06 October 2021, as a part of the business reorganisation, the Holding Company's Board of Directors have approved transfer
of its EPC business to wholly owned subsidiary {"WOS') of its Holding Company, Inox Wind Limited{"IWL"), RESCO Glcbal Wind
Service Limited (*RESCO’), with an objective to segregate the EPC Business and Operations and Maintenance Businessireferred as
‘O&M Business’) of the Holding Company. The divestment has been approved by the shareholders of the Company in their Extra-
ordinary General Meeting held on 21 October 2021,

Subsequently on 31 December 2021, to imptement the above divesture, the Holding Company has executed a Susiness Transfer
Agreement ('BTA’) with RESCO to transfer EPC business undertaking, together with all assets and liabilities as specified in the BTA
In relation to the EPC business as a going concern through slump sale. The assets and liabilities of the EPC business amounting to %
98,598.55 Lakhs and % 98,128.71 Lakhs respectively are transferced to RESCO from the date BTA becoming effective and
difference on assets and liabilities amounting ¥ 469.84 Lakhs on transfer of the EPC Business undertaking has recorded as
purchase consideration receivable. The holding company has completed its compliance with the terms and conditions of BTA on
31 becember 2021 and conseguently, the BTA has become effective from that date.

2. Project Undertaking Transfer Agreement [hereinafter referred as "PUTA"):

On 21 December 2021, as a part of the business reorganisation, Board of Directors of the WOS namely Wind Four Renergy Privale
Limitad {“WFRPL") in their meeting held on 15 November 2021 have approved transfer of its Business of generation and sale of
wind energy (referred to as "Project Business’) to RESCO. The divestment has been approved by the shareholders of the Company
in their Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 20 December 2021. )

Subsequently on 21 December 2021, to implement the above divesture, WFRPL has executed a PUTA with RESCO to transfer
Project, together with all assets and liabtlities as specified in the PUTA, The assets and liabilities of the Project Business amounting
1o X 4,280.72 Lakhs and % 4,277.93 Lakhs respectively are transferred to RESCG and dilference on Assets and liabilities amounting
% 2.79 Lakhs on transfer of 1the Project Business has recorded as purchase consideration receivable,

3. Share Sale Purchase Agreement:
On 06 October 2021, as a part of the business reorganisation, the Holding Company's Board of directors have approved transfer of
RESCO to its holding company [nox Wind Limited (‘IWL').

. . 1
Further, on 06 October 2021, as a part of the business reorganisation; the Holding Company’s Boayd of directors have approved
transfer of following wholly owned subsidiaries (W0Ss} to RESCO:

a) Marut-Shakti Energy India Limited

b) Satviki Energy Private Limited

¢} Sarayu Wind Power (Tallimadugula) Private Limited
d) Sarayu Wind Power {(Kondapuram) Private Limited
e) Vinirrmaa Energy Generation Private Umited

f) RBRK Investments Limited

In respect of above business re-organisation to implement the divesture the Holding Company has executed Share Purchase
Agreement {SPA} with WL and RESCO on 18 Cctober 2021 & 25 October 2021 against sale consideration amounting to % 1 Lakh
and % 158.61 Lakhs respectively. The resbective subsidiaries company has completed its compliance with the terms and
conditions of SPA on 19 October 2021 and 29 October 2021 respectiviey and conseguently, the BTA has become effective from
raspective that date.

4. The activities of the EPC business, Project Business and transfer of the all subsidiaries as mentioned in para 3 above of the Holding
Company, are considered as “Disposal Group”, and presented as discontinued operation in accordance with the provisions of
Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS} 105 — ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operatkons’.
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INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

32 : Note on Discontinued Operations:
5. Financial performance and cash flows for the Disposal Group:

S. No. [Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

a) |Analysis of profit/{loss) from discontinued operations

Revenue from operations 9,282.37 7,143.17
Cther Income 107.80 1,538.50
Total Income ' _ 9,390.17 8,681.67
Expenses

EPC, O&M and Common infrastructure facility expense 3,356.70 7.184.30
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 1,546.57 \328.64
Purchases of stock-in-trade 2,995.22 -
Employee Benefits Expenses 823.31 586.81
Finance Costs 4,957.70 8,442.62
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense . 1.52 2.83
Other Expenses 6,651.14 7,388.97
Total Expense 20,332.16 23,934.67
Less: Expenditure capitalised ' - -
Net Expenses 20,332,16 23,934.67
Profit/{Loss) before exceptional items and tax {10,541.99) {15,253.00)
Share of profit/{loss) of associates - {744.24)
Profit/{Loss) before tax {I+IV=V) {10,941.99} {15,997.24)
Exceptional ltems - - -
Profit/{Loss) before tax from discontinued operations [10,941.99} {15,997.24)
Tax Expense (2,122.14) {3,404.02}
Profit / (loss) after tax from discontinued operations {8,819.85} {12,593.22)

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be re-classified to profit and loss

Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans (7.17) 21.40
Tax on above 2.50 {7.48)
Total Other Comprehensive lncome {4.67} 13.92
Total Comprehensive income for the year {8,824.,52) {12,579.30)

b} [Net cash flow attributable to the discontinued operations*

Net Cash (outflows)/inflows from operating activities - {5,153.80}
Net cash used in investing activities ' - {1,504.40)
Net cash {outflows)/inflows from financing activities - 6,661.80
Net cash [outflows)/Inflows - {36.40)

* For the year ended 31 March 2022, the business operation of disposal Group has been transferred hence net cash outflows JInllows is
not applicable,




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

32 : Note on Discontinued Operations:
6. To give effect of the aforesaid BTA agreement, Project Undertaking Transfer Agreement and Share Sale Purchase Agreement as
stated above;

a.  Asrequired under the Ind AS 105, Group has re-presented the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for prior periods
presented In the consolidated Statements so that the disclosures relate to all operations that have been discontinued at
the end of the reporting period for the latest period is presented.

b. The EPC Business has historlcally operated as part of the Holding Company and not as a standalone entity. The figures
representing the operations of the EPC Business have been derived from the Company’s accounting records and are
presented as a discontinued operation. As part of the Company, the EPC Business is dependant upon the Company for all
of its working capital and financing requirements as the Helding Company uses 2 centralized approach to cash
management and financing of its operations. Accordingly, Finance Cost on all general-purpose borrowings including
current maturities, have been allocated based on the working capital requirement worked cut by managemant on a
reasonabte basis for EPC business n each financial year. -

c. Income and expenses pertaining to EPC Business have been allocated on a reasonable basis taking into consideration the
respective ¢cost/profit centres and employee head count and certain common expenses have been allocated basis tha
proportionate of total expense of the EPC Business and O&M Business,

d. The Holding company is in the process of compliance of various procedural terms and conditions as mentioned in the
respective lender's No Cbjection Certificate {NOC) and condition subsequent to the BTA.

7. Contingent Liability for the Disposal Group; The Contingent Liabili-t\.r for 30 assumed legal proceeding associated with BTA and
Contingent Liability for SPA associated with Disposal Group which has been transferred are as under:

(a) Claims against the Dispesal Group not acknowledged as debts: claims made by contractors - ¥ 597.80 Lakhs

Some of the suppliers have ralsed claims including interest on account of non payment in terms of the respective contracts. The
Disposat Group has contended that the suppliers have not adhered to some of the contract terms. At present the matters are
pending before the jurisdictional authorittes or are under negotiations.

{b) Claims against the Disposal Group not acknowledged as debts: claims made hy customers - € 5,709.10 Lakhs

{c) Claims made by vendors in National Company Law Tribunal [NCLT} % 2,528, 90 Lakhs

{d) Ciairm against the disposal Group by the supplier - X 22.70 Lakhs

{e} In respect of Service tax matter - X 265.80 Lakhs )
The Disposal Group has received orders for the period April 2016 to March 2017, in respect of Service Tz, levying demand of £
265.80 Lakhs on account of advance revenue received on which service tax has been already paid in financial year ended 31
March 2016. Since Service Tax Liability has been already discharged on such advance revenue, The Group has filed appeals before
CESTAT. The Group has pad T 19.90 Lakhs as pre deposit for filling of appeal.

{F) In respect of Income tax matter - % 580.20 Lakhs

The Disposal Group has received orders for the period Assessment Year 2016-17, in respect of Income Tax, levying demand of
580.20 Lakhs on account of addition in income without considesing the modus operandi of the business of the Dispesal Group.
The Group has filed appeal before commissioner of Income Tax (CIT Appeals} The Disposal Group has paid % 10.00 Lakhs under
protest.

All the above legal proceedings, shzll be continued. prosecuted, defended and enforced by the RESCO. For the avoldance of
doubt, it Is clarified that the cost and expenses incurred in continulhg, prosecuting, defending and enforcing the above Legal
Proceedings shzll be to the account of the RESCO. If pursuant to any such above Legal Proceedings, any penalties, interest or
monetary {iability of any nature whatsoever is required to be paid after the Closing Date, all such penalties, monetary liabilities
and Interest payments shall be discharged by the RESCO.




INCX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

32 : Note on Discontinued Operations:
8. The Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss may not include all the actual expenses that would have been incurred had the EPC

business operated as a standalone company during the periods presented and may not reflect financial performance had it
operated as a standalone company during such periods. Actual costs that would have been incurred if EPC business had operated
as a standalone company would depend on multiple factors, including organizational structure, capital structure, stratégic and
tactical decislons made in various areas, including information technology and infrastructure,

Therefore, the resulting financial performance in these consolidated Financial Statements may not be that which mighl have
axisted If the EPC business had been a standalone company.
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INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
Mates to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

33. Capital Management

For the purpose of the Group’s capital Management, capital includes issued equity share capital, security
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group.

. The Group’ s capital Management objectives are:

* to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern

* to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the level
of risk.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic cenditions and
the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares, The Group monitors
capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. The Group includes within net debt,
interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding
discontinued cperations, if any.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022 | 31 Miarch 2021
Non-current borrowings 31,544.80 34918.50
Current borrowings . 58,471.80 106183.90
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 362.09 7133.60
Total debt 90,773.6% 148236.00
Less: Cash and bank palances {excluding bank deposits kept . 8,520.94
as lien) 12023.10
Net debt 82,257.75 1,36,212,90
Total Equity 80,662.46 4296.2
Net debt to equity ratio 101.98% 3170.54%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital Management, amongst other things, aims to ensure
that #t meets financial cevenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital
structuie requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

- 34, Financial Instruments

(i) Categories of financial instruments ' Rs. in Lakhs
' As at As at

Particul
artictifars 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021

{a) Financlal assets
Measured at amortised cost

{a) Cash and bank balances . 11,679.48 13,429.01
{b} Trade receivables 6,804.65 22,320.05
{c} Loans ' ' 3,114.76 878.70
(d) Other financial assets 52,537.01 50,894.60

) 74,135.90 87,522.36

Measured at fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL)
(a) Investment in mutual funds - -

Total 74,135.90 87,522.36

{b} Financial liabilities
Measured at fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL)
Derivative financial liabilities - 480.23

Measured at amortised cost

{a) Borrowings ' 90,416.60 1,41,102.40
{b) Trade payables 8,026.26 51,924.50
(c} Other financial liabilities _ 1,827.57 30,001.20

1,00,270.43 |  2,23,508.33

The carrying amount reflected above represents the entity's maximum exposure to credit risk for such financial assets,
investment in associates are classified as equity investment have been.accounted as at historic cost. Since these are
scope out of Ind AS 109 for the purpose of measurement, the same have not been disclosed in the above table.

(i) Financial risk management

The group's corporate finance function provides services to the business, coordinates access to financial market,
monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the group through internal risk reports which
analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of the risk, These risks include market risk {including currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

(ili) Market Risk .

Market risk is that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in
market price. The Group does not have any foreign currency exposure and hence is not subject to foreign currency
risks. Further, the Group does not have any investments so the group is not subject to other price risks. Market risk
comprise of interest rate risk and other price risk.




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

34. Financial Instruments

{iii}{a) Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk refers to the possibility that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rate. The group is exposed to interest rate risk because it borrows funds at both
fixed and fioating interest rates. The risk is managed by the group by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and
" floating rate borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The'sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for floating rate liabilities
at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, a 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. '

If interest rates had been SO basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the group's profit for
the period ended 31 March 2022 would decrease/increase by ¥ 95,77 lakhs net of tax {31 March 2021 would
decrease/increase by % 109,60 Lakhs net of tax). This is mainly attributable to the group’s exposure to interest rates on
its va-iabie 1ate borrowings.

(iii}{b) Other price rlsks

The group’s non listed equity securities as susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertianties about future
vatues of the investment securities. Management monitors the investment closely to mitigate its impact on profit and
cash flows.

{iv) Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. Crelit risk arises primarily from financial assets such as trade receivables, other balances with banks, loans and
other receivables.

a) Trade receivables

Credit risk arising from trade receivables is managed in accordance with the Group’s established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management, The Group is providing O&M services and is having long term
contracts with such customers. Accordingly, risk of recovery of such amounts is mitigated. Customers who represents
more than 5% of the total balance of Trade Receivable as at 31 March 2022 is X 3,542,77 lakhs {as at 31 Macch 2021 i5
%1,3236.80 Lakhs) are due from 6 major customers who are reputed parties. All trade réceivables are reviewed and
assessed for default at each reporting period.

For trade receivables, as a practical expedient, the Group computes credit loss allowance based on a provision matrix,
The provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed defaull rates over the expected life of trade receivables
and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows,

Expected credit loss (%)

Ageing \ 2021-2022 | 2020-20i%
0-1 Year . ) _ 1% _ 1%
1-2 Year _ 10% 5% |

2-3 Year . _ 15% . 10%

3-5 Year 25% 15%
Ahove 5 Year 100% 100%




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED-{formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

34, Financial Instruments

k3

Age of recelvables Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022* | 31 March 2021*

0-1 Year 5,643.54 6,453.30

1-2 Year 669.88 ~7,710.86
12-3 Year 515.21 ' 2,139.78

3-5 Year 224.68 7,921.52

Above 5 Year - 2,224.28

Gross trade receivables 7,053.31 26,449.75

* Expected credit loss(ECL) is not calculated for Balance oustanding with related party.

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance ;

Particulars 2021-2022 2020-2021

Balance at beginning of the year 4,129.70 2,295.67

Movement in expected credit loss allowance- Further Alfowance 146.96 1,996.03

Movement in expected credit loss allowance - on account of transfer of EPC {(4,028.00) -

Business

Movement in expected credit loss allowance- Amount written off/(Amount written - 162.00

back)

Balance at end of the year 248.66 4,129.70

b) Leans and Other Receivables

The Group applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss allowance on the loans
given by the Group to the external parties. ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
group in accordance with the contract and alt the cash flows that the Group expects to receive {i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The Group determines if there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial asset since initial recognition.
If the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equal to 12-month ECL is measured and
recognized as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is
measured and recognized as loss allowance.

12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which resuft from default events that are possible within 12 months
from the reporting date. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from ail possible default events over the
expected life of a financial asset.

-ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined by.a range of
outcomes, taking into account the time value of money and other reasonable information available as a result of past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECL impairment loss allowance {or revérsal) recognized during the peried is recognized as income/expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss under the head ‘Other expenses’.

¢} Other financial assets
Credit risk arising from cother balances with banks is limited because the counterparties are banks.




- INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as inox Wind infrastructure Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

34, Financial Instruments

(v} Liquidity Risk Management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the committee of board of directors of the Group,
which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group's short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity rick by
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

{vi) Liquidity risk table .

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with
agreed repayment pericds. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
- based on the carliest date on which the Group can be required to pay, The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curves at the end of the reporting period. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Group
may be required to pay.

a) Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities : : .
The tabie below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest
payments as at 31 March 2022; ' '

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Less than 1 year 1to S year 5 years and Total
_ . above
Borrowings ) 58,471.80 31,944.80 - 50,416.60
Trade payables 8,026.26 - - 8,026.26
Cther financial liabilities 1,827.57 - - 1,827.57
68,325.63 31,944.80 - 1,00,270.43

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest
payments as at 31 March 2021:

e Rs, in Lakhs

Particulars Less than 1 year |- 1to 5 year 5 years and Total
above
Borrowings 1,06,183.90 34,913.50 - 1,41,162.40
Trade payables 51,924.50 - - : 5;,924‘50
Derivative financial liabifities _ - 480.23 480.23
Other financial liabilities 30,001.20 - - 30,001.20
1,88,109.60 35,398.73 - 2,23,508.33

The above liabilities will be met by the Group from internal accruals, realization of current and non-current financial
assets {other than strategic investments). Further, the Group also has unutilised financing facilities.
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INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerty known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 32 March 2022

35. Employee benefits:
{a} Defined Contribution Plans
The group centributes to the Government managed provident and pension fund for all qualifying employees.

Contribution to provident fund of % 80.80 Lakhs (31 March 2021 % §5.40 Lakhs) is recognized as an expense and included
in "Contribution te provident and other funds” in Stalement of Profit and Loss,

{b) Defined Benefit Plans:

The Company has defined benefit plan for payment of gratuity to al qualifying employees. It is governed by the Payment

of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under this Act, an employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to the specified

benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the employee’s length of service and salary at retirement age. The
- Company's defined beneflt plan is unfunded.

There are no other post retirement benefits provided by the Company.

The most racent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 31 March
2022 by M/5 Charan Gupta Consultants Put. Ltd., Fellow of the Institute of the Actuaries of India. The present value of
the defined benefit obligation, the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected

unit credit method.

Rs. in Lakhs
Movement in the present value of the defined benefit Gratuity
ohligation are as follows :
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening defined benefit obligation 147.99 137.63
| Acquisition adjustment in -
Interest cost 9.92 9.17
Current service cost 34.28 35.66
Benefits paid {16.17) {12.03)
Actuarial {gain] / ioss on obligations {36.84} {22.44)
Present value of obligation as at the year end 139,18 147.99
Components of amounts recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as under:

Rs. in Lakhs

Gratuity 31 March 2022 |31 March 2021

Current service cost 34.28 35.66
Interest cost 9,92 9.17
Amount recognised in profit or loss 44,20 44.83
Actuarial (gain)/loss
a) arising from changes in financial assumptions {6.44) {0.57)
v} arising from experlence adjustments {30.40| (21.86)
Amount recogaised in other comprehensive income {36.84) {22.44)
Total 7.36 22.39




- INCX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as hox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

35, Employee benefits:

The principal assumptions used for the purpeses of the actuarial valuations of gratuity are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate (per annum) 7.13% 6.70%
Expected rate of salary increase 8.00% 8.00%
Employee attrition rate 5% 5%

JIALM{2012-14)Ulimate Mortality
Mortality Table

Estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation take account of inflation, sentority, promation and
other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

These plans typlcally expose the Company to actuarial risks such as interest rate risk and salary risk.

a) Interest risk: a decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.

b) Salary risk: the present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
participants. As such, a variation in the expected rate of salary increase of the plan participants will change the plan
fiability.

Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuariai assumptions for the determination of defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary
increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonahbly possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting pericd, while holding alf other assumptions constant.

Gratuity

Particutars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Impact on present value of defined benefit obligation:

If discount rate is increased by 0.50% (7.2} (7.42}
If discount rate is decreased by 0,50% 7.91 3.12
If salary escalation rate is increased by 0.50% 7.05 7.61
If salary escalation rate is decreased by 0.50% {6.58) {7.01)

The sensitivity analysls presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation
as it is uniikely that the change in assumption would occur in isolation of one ancther as some of the assumptions may be
correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation
has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that
applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

S
o
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INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022

35. Empioyee benefits;

- Expected outflow in future years {as provided in actuariai report}

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

Gratuity

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Expected outflow in 1st Year
Expected outflow in 2nd Year
Expected outflow in 3rd Year
Expected outflow in 4th Year
Expected outflow in 5th Year
Expected outflow in 6th te 10th Year

4,74
7.59
7.08
6.77
6.31
106.70

19.77
5.25
5.58
5.89
5.92

105,59

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation for the year ended 31 March 2022 s 14.01 {31 March 2021:

14.01 years)

{c) Other long term employment benefits:
Annual teave & Short term leave

The liability tewards compensated absences {annual and short term leave) fer the vear ended 31 March 2022 based on
actuarlal valuation carried out by using Projected accrued benefit method resulted in increase in liablity by T 6.59 lakhs
{31 March 2021 % 5.55 Lakhs), which is included in the employee benefits in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and

" Loss,

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations of compensated absences are as follows:

As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate 7.13% 6.70%
Expacted rate of salary increase 8.00% 8.00%|
Employee attrition rate 5.00% 5.00%

Vortality rate

IALM(2012-14)Ultimate Mortality
Table

)
;
:
:




INGX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as thox Wind infrastructure Services Limited) .
Notos Lo Lhe ¢ lidated financial for the year ended 31 March 2022

35. Related Party Bisclosures:

i. Where control exists

Inen Wind Limited (IWL) - holdina company

Inox Wind Energy Limited [IWEL) - holding company of {WL
Incx Leasing and Finance Limited - ultimate holding company

il Other Related parties with whom thare are transactions during the year

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Meno| Shambhu Disti - whale-time director in Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limitad

#r. Mukesh Manglik - Non Executive Director 1n inox Wind Infrastructure Sarvices Limited {up to 18 May 2020}
e, Mukesh Manglik - whole-time director In inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limitad [w.e f. 19 May 20200
Mr. Vineet Davis - whole-time director in Inea Wind Infrastructure Services Limited [up ta 13 May 2020

Mr. Wineat Davis - Non Executive Diractor in lnos Wind Infrastructure Setvices Limited w.ai. 19 May 2020
Mrs. Bindu Saxena- Non executive diractor (w.e.l 14 December 202'11

#Ar_ Shanti Prashad Jain - Non exacutiye director

hAr. V.5ank ¥ - Non ive director

Mr. Bhupesh Junela - Non Executive Director in Marut Shakti Energy Indla Limlted

Mr. Mukesh Patnl - Nen Executive Directar In WMarut Shaktl Energy indla Limited

M. Wineet Yalentine Davls - Nan Executive Director Tn Marut Shakti Energy India Limited

Assoclates #

1. Wind One Renergy Limited [formerly known as Wind Cne Renergy Private Lmited)

2. Wind Two Renergy Private Limited

3. Wind Threa Renergy Limitad (formerly known as Wind Three Re{lerg\r Private Limited)
4. Wind Four Renergy Private Limited

5. Wind Five Renergy Limitod (formerly known as Wind Five Renergy Private Limited)

&. Khatlyu wind Energy Private Limited {Upto_ls Decernbar 2018)*

7. Ravapar Wind Energy Private Limited {Upto On 15 December 20185

2. Nan| Viranl Wind Energy Private Limited (Uplo On 15 December 2013)*

Fellow Subsidiaries

Gujarat Fluorochemicals Umited ("GFCL™ {earlier known a5 Inox Flugrochemicals Limited)
GFL Limted {earller known as Gujarat Fluorochemicals Limited)

Inox Renewables Limited {IRL) - Subsidiary of GFL Limlted {upto 01 April 2021) *
Ina Leisure Limited {ILL} - Subsidiary of GFL Limited

Wall energy Private Limited

Resco Global Wind Service Private Limited |w.a.f, 15 Getober 2021)

Marut Shakti Energy India Limited (w.e.f. 2% October 2021)

Satvikl Energy Private Limited (w.e.f, 29 Oclober 2021}

Sarapy Wind Power [Tallimaduguta) Private Limited (w.e.f. 25 Octoher 3021}
Vinlrrmas Energy Ganeration Private Limited [w.e.f. 29 October 2021)

Sarayu Wind Power [Kondapuram} Private Limited {w.e.f. 28 October 2021)
RBRX Investments Limited [w.e.f. 29 October 2021)

*The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Sench {"NCLT") vide lts order dated 25 January 2071 has approved a Composite Scheme of Arrang 1k {“the S$cheme") b GFL Limited,
Inak Renewables Umited and Inox Wind Energy Limited {wholly-owned subsidisries of GFL Limited) as detsiled below:

a} Part A - Amalg lon of Inox R bles Limited inte GFL Limited w.e.f. 01 April 2020 and

b} Part § - D gar of the R ble Energy Busl {as more partlcularly deflned in the Sch i and git | of GFL Limited in Inox Wind Limited and other assets and llabilities pertaining

to the said business Into Inox Wind Energy Limitad, a newly Incorporated company for the purpuse of vesting of the Renewable Energy Business vi.e.f. 01 July 2020
The aloresaid Scheme become effsctive from 9 February 2021, Upan the said Scheme becoming effsctive, ox Wind Limited has become the substdlary campany of Inox Wind Erergy Limited w.e.f. 01 July
2020.

** Various binding agreements enlered into with party has ceased to exit w.ef. 01 Jan 2021, a5 par lerm and conditions of the sgreement. The group has galned control over such companies in terms of Ind
AS 1100 O lidated Fi ial stat Therefare, the group has accounted for investment in such companles as Investment fn "subsidiary’ from the date of galnlng cantrol.

¥ IWI5L has farmad ahove wholly-owned subsidlaries for the purpose of carrylng out business of generation and sale of wind anergy. IWISL has entered into varlous binding agreements with a party Lo, inter.
alla, transfer the shares of such compantes at a future date end defining rights of the respective parties. In view of the provisions of these binding agreemeants, it 1s assessed Lhat IWISL has ceased ta exercise
control over such companles in terms of Ind AS 110: Consclidated Financial Statements. Therefars, IWISL has accountad for | tn such panles as i tin * * from Lhe date of
cessatlon of control.

Naota-Retared party relatiohship are as identified by the Group and relled upon by the audietrs,

The falloveng table summarizes related-party transactlons and balances lnctuded in the ¢ lidared financial

X in Lakhs)
|Particulars Helding company Assaciates Fellow subsidiarios Total
A} Transactions during the year 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Sale of gaods and services
Inox Wind Limlted 5,520.90 3,365.62 - - - - 5,320,90 © 236542
GFL Limited - 18.06 - - - - - 13.06
Inox Wind Energy Limited 43.20 5508 - - - - 43.20 55.06
Gujarat Flugrochemicals Umited - - - - 53985 514,14 53985 51d.14
Marut Shakt] Energy india Lid . . - - - 125.03 . 125.03 -
wind One Renergy Limited - - £.06 55.61 - - 6.06 55,61
Wind Two Renergy Private Limited : - - 6.06 253.79 - - 6.6 253.79
Wind Three Renergy Limited - - 6.06 33.63 - - 6.06 33,43
Wind Five Renergy Limited - - 5.28 160.82 - - 5.88 160.52
Ingy Renewabies Limited - - - - - - . -
Resco Global Wind Service Private Limlted - - . - 836.32 - 83632 .
[Toral — 5,364.10 2.438.74 24.06 503,85 1,501.20 514.14 6,889.36 3.450.73
Purchase of goods and services




INDX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED Hormerly known as Inax Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)

 linancial st

Hotes to Lhe ¢

36, Belated Porly Disclosures:

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Inox Wind Limitad 5973.48 14,738.87 - - - - 9,973.48 |- 14,738,837
Inox R bles Limited - - - - - . _ R
Gujarat Fluerochemicals Limited - - - - - 108.16 - 108.16
Total . 9,973.48 14,738.87 - - - i1G8.16 9,973.48 14,847.03
Purchase return of goods and services
Inox Wind Limited 1,038.09 13,403.00 - - B . 4,038.09 13,403.00
Total 4,038.09 13,403.00 - - - - 4,038.09 13,403.00
imer-corporate depasits 1aken
Inoy Wind Limlted 98,793.52 54,333,494 - - - - 94, 7403.52 54,333.04
Total 98,793.52 54,333.94 - - - - §8,793.52 54,333.54
(% in Laths)
| Pacticulais Helding pany Associates Fellow subsidiaries Tatal
31 March 2022 { 3t March 2021 | 31 March2022 | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2022 31 March 2021| 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
4) Transactions during the year-cont.
Inter-corparate deposits rofunded
Inox Wind Limited 5037416 A1,197.84 - - - - 50,374.16 41,197,284
MVEL Limitee 10,000,040 - - - - 10,00¢.00 -
Total 60,374.16 41,197.84 - - - - 60,374.16 41,197.84
[ Investment In equity share shares during the year
Wind Four Rensigy Privsta Limited - - - 740,40 - - - 740,40
[ Total - - - 140.40 - - . 7a0.40
tAdvance recelved back
Ingx Wind Energy Limitad - 2,008.03 - - - - 2,006.03
Total - 2,009.03 - - - - - 2,00%.03
Advance recelved
Gujarat Fluorechemlcals Limited - - - - 1.200.00 - 1.100.00 -
total . - - - - 1,100,800 - 1,200.00 -
Advance refunded
Gularat Fluor icals Lirlted - - - 1L,000.00 - 1,000.00 .
Inox Wind Energy Limited 5,060.00 - - - - - 5,060.00 .
Total 5,060, - - - 1,000.080 - 6,060.00 -
Inter-torporata deposits given
Marut Shaktl Energy Indla {imited - . - - 2.50 - 2.50
RBRK investments Lmited - - - IF0.CES - 170.58
Resco Global Wind Service Private Limlted - . - - 2,200.40 | . 220040 [ R
Wnd Four Renergy Private Limited - - 241.99 - - ) 2180
Satayy Wind Power (Tallimadugula) Private imited - - - - 0.01 Q.01 -
Sarayu Wind Power {Kondapuram} Private Limited - - - - 0.01 - 0.01 -
Satvlk] Energy Privale Limited - - - 0.01 - 06.01 ]
Vinkrrmaa Energy Generation Private Limitod - - - - 0.01 - 0.01 -
Total - - - 211.99 2,373.62 - 2,3723.62 241,99
Inigr-corporate deposits takon bach
Wind One Renergy LimHed - - 0.04 - - - 0.01 .
Marut shektl Energy India Limited - - - - 1.27 ] - 1.27 -
Wind Three Renargy Limitcd - + 20,83 ! - - - 20.83
Wind Five Rencrgy Limited - - 026 - - 626 | -
Resco Global Wind Service Private Limlied - - - - £.98 .98 -
Totat - - 21.13 - 525 - 27.38 -
Inturast paid
Tnox Wind Limited
-0 Inter-corporate deposit 212122 3,345.62 - - - - 2,121.23 2,349.62
-0n debentures 473 42 1,036.71 - - - - 473,42 LG36T1
-Cn prefareice snares 074 0741
Gularat Fluori-chemicals Umited
-Bn Capital Advance - - - - 946.43 1,674.90 946.43 1,674.90
|GFL Limlted ) ) A
-On Intor-corporate deposit - 174,52 - - - - - _ iyas2
Inox Wind Eneray |imbted
-On Inter-corpatate depasit 39294 525.48 - - - - 392,94 52549
Total 2,988.32 5.086.33 - - 946.43 1,673.90 3,934,75 576123




INDX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {(formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
Hotes to the ¢ lidated financlal statemants for the yoar anded 31 March 2022

36, Related Parry Disclosures:
(Tin Lakhs)

Farthculars Holding company Associates Foltow subsidiaries Total

31 March 2022 | 31 March 20211 31 March 2022 | 31 Mazch 2021 | 31 March 2022 | 31 Miarch 2021 | 31 march 2022 | 31 March 2021

A] Transactions during the year-cont.
Guarantes Charges paid

Gularat Fluorochemicals Limlted . - - - - 693.52 455.53 £93.52 455,53
| Inox Wind Energy Limited 40.80 - - - - - 40.80 -
GFL Limited - - - - 101.11 - joi.11
Total 44.80 - - - 693,52 556.64 73432 §56.64
Guarantee Charges received

Reseo Global Wind Service Private Limited - - . - 22.20 - 22.20 -
Total - - - - 2320 - 2.0 -

Interest received oo ICD

Marut-Shakti Energy Indla Limited - - - - 5L.55 . 51.55 |

Satviki Energy Private Limitad - - - - 0.05 - 0.05 -
Sarayu Wind Power [Tallimadugula) Private Limited - - - - 0.08 - 0.08 -
Winlrrmiaa Energy Generatlon Private Limited - - - - 76 - 375 -
Sarayu Wind Power {Kondapuram] Private Limlted - - - - 257 - 2.57 -
RBRK Investmants Limited - - - - 50.83 - 50.83 -
|Resco Global Wind Service Pilvate Limited - - - - - 0,90 - 0.90 -
Wind Four Renergy Frivate Limlied - - - 8.35 - - - 8.35
Wind Five Renergy Limited - - 780 78.03 - - 78.03 78.03
Wind One Renergy Limited - - 02 Q.05 - - 0.02 Q.05
Wind Threa Ranergy Limited - - 8.26 &N - - £.26 i)
Total - - £6.30 95.14 108.75 - 196.05 95,14

Optipnally Convortible Bebentures converted Lo Equity Share

Inox Wind Limited 20,000.00 10, 000,00 b - - - 20,000.00 10,006.00

Total . 29,000.00 10,000.00 - - - - 20,000.00 10,000.00

Issue of Preferenta Shares

Inox Wind Limited 20,000.60 - L - - . 20,000.00 -

Total 20,000.00 - - - - - 20,000.00 -

Intar Corporaie Daposit converted ta Equity Share .

Inox Wind Limlted 39,187.57 - - - - - 39,187.57 -

Total : 39,187.57 - - - - - 39,182.57 -

Rent Recelvad ]

Satvik| Energy Private Limited - - - . 0.02 - 0.02 -

Sarayu Wind Power {Tallimzdugula) Private Umited - - . - .02 - 0.02 -

Yinirrmas Enerpy Ganeralion Privata Limited - - - - 0.02 - 0.02

Sarayu Wind Powor {Kondar | Private Limited - - - - 0.02 - Q.02 -

RBRK | Limited - - - - £.03 - 002 -

Total - - o - 0.10 - 0.10 -

[Rant Paid

Gularal Fluorochemicals Umited - - - = 3.09 2.90 304 2.90

Tolal - - - ) - 1,04 2,90 304 | 2.90
1% in Lakhs)

Particulars Holding ¢ Associates Fallow subsidiari Toral

31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2022 | 31 march 2021
A) Transactions durlng the ygar-cont.

emant of exp paid/pay made on

behall of \he Group

inox Wind Limlted 1,788.18 675.05 - - - - 1,783.18 &75.0%
Wind Two Renargy Private Limited - - 59.50 - - 59.50 -
Gujarat Fluorochemicals mited - - - - 337.90 337.90 337.96 337.90
|Inox Wind Energy Limited - 331.41 - ) - - - - 331.41
Resco Global Wind Service Private Limlted - - . - - 161.46 - 161.46 -
Wind Three Renergy Limited . - - 444.50 - - - AM4.50 -
Wind Five Renergy Limited - - 846.30 - - - £45.30 -
Wind one Renergy Limlted - - 605,00 - - - 505.00 -
Total 1.786.18 1.006.46 1,955.30 - 439.36 337.50 4,242.84 1,344.36
Reimbursement of expenses received/paymont made

on bohalf by the Group -

Inex Wind LTm|ked 1,286.80 1,300.65 - - - - 1,286.20 1,300.65
Inox Wind Enerpy Limlted 51.06 - - - - - 51.06

|Gujarat Fluorechemicals Limited - i00.87 - - - N - 100,27
Waft Energy Private Limited - - - - Q.22 4.72 0.22 | | H.72

Total 1,337.86 1,401.52 . - 0.22 A2 1,338.08 1,496.24




INCK GREEN ENE!IIGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as Inow Wing Infrastructure Services Limited)
Hotes to the o lidated financial st 1s for the year oaded 31 March 2022

36. Related Party Disclosures:

[ {n Lakhs)
partcalars Holding company Associates Fellow subsidlaries Total
B) Balance ai at the end of the year 31 March 2022 31 Mar 2021 31 March 2022 | 31 Mar 2021 | 31 March 2022 31 Mar 2021 31 March 2022 | 31 Mar 2021
2} Amounts payable
Trade and pthor payables
Inox Wind Limlted 2,179.24 26,251.21 - - - 2,179.24 26.251.21
Gufarat Fluorechemicals Limited - - - - 106.90 72053 106.90 [ 720.93
GFL Lirnited - - . - - 1,345.42 - 1,345.42
Ings Wind Energy Limlted - 0.47 - - - - - 017
Resco Glokal Wind Senvice Private Limited - - - - 537.54 - 537.54 -
Waft energy Private Umited - - - - - 172 - 172
Satviki Energy Private Limited - - - - 4,73 - 4.73 -
Wind Two Renergy Private Limited - - £1.92 - - - 57.92 -
Total 2,179.24 26,251.38 57.92 - 649.17 207107 2,886.33 28,312.45
interest acerued on preference shares
Inox Wind Umited 0.66 - - - - - 0.65 -
Total 0.66 - - - - - 0.66 -
inler-corporate depesit payabl.
Inexn Wind Limited 12,925.70 47,826.70 - - 1292570 47,826.70
GFL Limited - - - - - - - .
Ihox Wino Energy Eimited - 10,000.00 - - 1007000
Total 12,325.70 57,826.70 - - - - 12,925.70 57,626.70 |
Debentures o
Inox ¥Wind Limited - 20,000.00 - - - - - 20,060.00
Total - 20,008,00 - - - - - 26,000.00
Han-Convertible, Non- Cemuldlive, Patticipating,
| Bedgomabls Profercncs Shatos
Inex Wind Limiled 20,000.00 - - - - - F0,000.00 -
Teta) 20,000.00 - - . - - 20,000.00 -
Interest payable on Inter-torporate deposit
Inox Wind Limited 226.64 3,467.54 - - - - 226,64 2467.54
Inox Wind Energy Limited 1,630.37 - - - - - 1,030.37
Total 226.64 4.497.91 - - - - 226.64 4,497.91
Intorest payabla on debentures
Inox Wind Limited - 328.42 - - - - - 32842
Tatal - 378.42 - - - - - 3z8.42
Interest payabie on Advante
Bujarat Fluorechemicals Limited - - - - - 2,415.67 2AL.67
Total B - - - - 2,M5,57 - 3,015,67
b} Amount receivakle
Trade apd other receivable
GFL Lim|ted - . - - - -
Gujarat Fluorochamicals Limited - - - - - -
Inox Wind Limited - 619,58 - - - - 14 55
1o Wind Energy LUimlted 112.03 314.56 - - - - 11203 314,56
Wind One Renergy Limited - - 11546 3,416.84 - - _ 11546 3,146,841
wind Twe Renergy Private Limited - - - 3.244.44 - - - L 3 24841
Wind Thiee Renergy Limited - - B3.87 753.96 - - B2.89 /53.95
‘Wind Five Renergy Limited - - 105.85 481 - - 109.85 48]
|Wafr enarpy Private Limited - - - - - 0.056 - __ome
Rosco Global Wind Zervice Private Limite 4 - - . - 724.95 . 73486 -
Telal 112,03 | 934.14 3i4.20 745405 724,86 0.66 1,151.09 9.388.75
) [ ip takhs)
Particulars Holding company Assnciates Fellow sohsiclarics Total
B} Balance as at the end of the year 31 March 2022 | 31 Mar202% | 31 March 2022 1 31 Mar2021 | 31 March 2022] 31 Mar 2021 | 31 March 2022 | 31 mar 2021
Advance recelvad from Customer _
Inox Wind Enargy Limited - 5, NEC.00 - - - - - 5,080,00
Gujaratl| hernicess | Imited - - - - 1C0.00 16,748.98 100.60 15,743.%8
bdarut Shakli Energy India Limited - - - - 31.14 - 31.14 -
Total - 506040 - - 13114 | 15,748.08 131.14 21,808.58
: . [Rs. in Lakhs}
Parti¢uiars oiding company Asgacintes Tollow subsigiarips Teolzl
B] Balance as at the end of ke yoar 3L March 2022 | 31Mar2021 | 31 March 2022 | 31 Mar 2021 | 33 March 2022 31 Mor 2021 [ 31 March 2022 | 31 Mar 2021
Other Dues Receivablo
Resco Global Wind Service Frivate Lienited - - 17644 186.44
Hesco Global Wind Service Privaie Limited |EPC Gusinass Safe 459,34
Congideratfon Recelvable) - - i 469.84 -
| Total ) - - - 655,28 - 656,28 |
Inter—corporale dg_posi: receivable i
Resco Global Wind Service Privaia Limlted - - - - 2,197.28 - 2,197.28
Satvlki Energy Private Limited - - - - 201 - 0.01
Sarayu Wind Power (Tallimadugula) Private Limiied - - : - i - 0.01 -
Vinlremaa Enerpy Generation Pilvate Limited - - - T - 0.01 _ -
Sarayu Wind Power (Kendapurzim) Private Limited - - - 0.01 - 0.u1 -




INOK GREEM ENERGY SERVICES LIITED {formarly known as (nox Wind infrastructure Services Limited)

Notes to the ¢ lidated financial stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2022
36. Related Parly Disclosures:
RBRK Investrents | Imired - - - - 0.04 - 0,01 -
Wind Five Rensrpy Limited - - 650.00 650,26 - - G50.00 65026
Wind One Renergy Limited - - 0,41 £.45 - - o4l .45
Limited - - 51,74 7257 - - 51,79 7257 .
- - 702,15 723.28 2,197.33 - 2,899.48 723.28 j
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INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED [Formerly known as Incx Wind Infrastructure Seevices Limited]
Notes to the © lidated financial stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2022

36, Related Party Disclosures:

'hs. in Lakhs)

Helding company Assoclates Fellow subsiniaries Total
Particulars
B) Balance as at the end of the year-cont, 31 March2022 | 331Mar 2021 | 31 March 2022 | 31 Mar 2021 | 31 March 2022 | 31 Mar 2021 | 31 March 2022 | 31 Mar 2021
Interest on Inter-corporate deposiy receivable
Marul Shakti Energy tndia Limited - - - - 0.03 - 2.03 b -
Resco Global Wind Service Private Limited . - - - 0.79 - 0.79 -
Wind Flve Renergy Limlted - - 196.12 125.90 - - 196,12 135,96
Wind One Renergy Limited - - 0,20 0.17 . - 0.20 0.17
Wind Thres Renerg_\t Limited - - 18,17 16.78 - - 18.17 1678
Total - - _214.49 142,85 0.82 - 215.31 142.85

<€) Guarantoos

GFL LImlted ("GFL™} {earlier xnown as Gujarst Fluorochemicals Limited], has issued guarantee and provided securfly in respect of Lorruwings by the group. The outsianding balances of such borrowings os at
31 March 2022 ks NIl (a5 at 31 March 2021 s 3 7,453.00 Lakhs). Further, GFL Limited has |ssued parformance Bank Guaranies s at 31 March 2022 is Ml {#5 it 31 darch 2021 15 X 3,425.00 Lakhs).

Gujaral Fluorachemicals Limited ("GFCL"] {earlier known 35 inox Fluorochemicals Limhed), the fellow sutsidlaries company, has Tssued guarantee and previded secLiity in respect of borrowings by the group.
The outstanding balences of such borrewings as al 31 March 2022 is % 3,2016.70 Lakhs {31 March 2021 |5 T 77,359.00 Lakhs). Further GFCL has issued perforrnance Bank Guaraniee as o1 31 March 2022 is 2
17,300.00 Lakhs {31 March 2021 Is % 3,425.00 Lakhs). L

inox Wind Limited the Holding Company, has lssued guarantes and provided securlty In respect of borrowings by the proup. The outstanding balances of such borrewings as at 31 March 2027 |5 7 5,417.00
lakhs.

The company has providen security 1. first pari-passu charge over the movable fixed assets, both presanl ard futura, against Term Loan from financkal Institttlon taken by Inox Wind Limited HIWL)

Hotes:

ta] Sales, purchases and service transactinns with related parties are made at arm's length price.

{b) Amounts cutstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash or recelpts/provision of goods and services. . .
[e} Ne has been recognised for the year snded 31 March 2022 and for the year ended 31 March 2021 tor bad of doubtiul trade recelvables in respect of amounls owed by related partles.
{d} There have been no other guarantées received or provided for any refated party recelvables or payables.

(=) Comp ion of Key management personnel

Pacticulars 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021

M Remuneration pald -

= Mr. Mana| Dixit 31.30 3an . . B
~ Ir. Vineet Davis 3239 4321 .
- Mr. Mukesh Manglik - 49.94
Sitting fees pald 1o directors 9.80 7.80
Total 73.49 134.05
Partlculors 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Shart lerm benaflts 63.69 126,26
Post emplovmant bonafles* - -
Long term employment benefits* N - .

Share based payments - -
Termination banefits - -
SittIng lees paid to directors 9.50 7.80

|Total . 73.4% 134.06

*

AR / ”’/
N
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INDX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly hnown as Inox Wind Infrastructare Services Limited)
Hotes to the o lidated financial st ts far the year ended 31 March 2022

36, Related Party Disclosures:

* A5 the liabilities for the defined banafit plans and other long Lerm benefits are provided on actuarial basis for the Company , the amount pertalning to KMP are not included above,
The remuneration of directors and Key Management Personnel (KMP) Is detarmined by the Nomination and R fon C lttee having regard to the performance of indlviduals and market trends,

Contrlbution to provident Fund [deflned contributlon plan) is % 2.40 Lakhs [March 2021 ® 6.50 Lakhs) Included In the amount of remuneration reporied above,

|} Disclosure required under section 186{4) of Lhe Companias Act, 2013 i

Lozng lo relzied partles:

hiame of 1he Party Nature 21 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
| Marut Shakt] Energy India Limited Inter Corporale Deposil - A
Sarayu Wind Power (Talllmadugula) Private Limited inter Corporale Deposil 0,10 NA
Sarayu Wind Pewer (Kondapuram) Private Limited Inter Corporate Deposil 010 A
| Salvik] Energy Private Limited Inter Lo Deposit 0.10 HA
Vinlremaa Energy Generation Private Limited Inter Corporate Deposit ) Q.10 - HA
RRAK Investmonts Limitad Inter Corporate Deposit 0.10 © NA
‘Wind One Rensrgy Limited ) Inter Corporate Deposit 0.41 045
‘Wit Tlrea Renergy Limiled Inter Corporate Deposlt . 51.74 7257
Wind Flve Renergy Limited Intes Carporate Deposit 650.00 £50.26
Resco Global Wind Service Private Limitad tnler Corg Deposit 2,197.28 NA
Inter-corporata deposits are d and repayable on demand and carries interest & 12% p.a. These Inans, Securities and Guarantee are given for ganeral business purposes.

(€] Addllional dis¢losure in respect of loans given, as required by the Listing Agreament: .

Name of the loanae Year Amount of loans|  Maximum Investmant by

at the year end | balance during | the lsaneein

tha year shares of the

company

Marut Shakli Energy India LImited 31 March 2022 - - Nil
Sarayu Wind Power (Tallimadugula) Private | Imited 31 March 2022 i 0,10 0.10 Mil
Sarayu Wind Power (Kendapuram) Private Limitad 31 March 2022 0.10 0.10 ull
Satviki Erergy Private Limiled 31 Maich 2022 0.10 0,10 NI
Vinlrrmaa Energy ioh Private Limiled 31 March 2022 010 : 10 NIl
REGRK | Limlted 31 Margh 2022 010 0,10 sl
Wind Gne Renerpy Limited 31 darch 2022 0.41 .05 ]l
31 March 2021 045 045 il
i i 31 March 2022 51.74 72.57 Hil
Wind Three Renergy Limiled 31 Merch 2021 757 7557 il
_ _ . 31 March 2022 650,00 [ Hil
Wind Five Ranergy Limied 31 oh 2021 §50.26 530.26 Wil
Resco Global Wind Service Private Limited 31 March 2022 2,387.28 2,197.28 Nil




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

37, Income tax recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Rs. in Lakhs

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current tax
In respect of the current year - -
Taxation pertaining to earlier years - {0.19)
- {0.19)
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year (2,097.69) {3,865.14)
(2,097.69) (3,865.14)
Total income tax expense recognlised in the current year {2,097.69} {3,865.33)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Profit/(loss) before tax for the year from continuing operations
Profit/(Loss) before the tax for the year from discontinued operations

Income tax expense®*

Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profits
Deferred tax on losses of subsidiaries not recognised

Others

Taxation pertaining to earlier years
Income tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

(470.64) (3,234.23)
(10,941.99) {15,997.24)
(3,988.03) (6,720.24)
- 49,90

- 2,884.15
1,890.30 {77.20)
(2,097.73) (3,863.39)
- (1.90)
(2,097.73) (3,865.29)

*The tax rate used for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is 34.944%. The tax rate is corporate tax rate

payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law.

Provision for tax in the consolidated financial information for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 are only
provisional in the respective years and subject to change at the time of filing of Income Tax Return based on actual

addition/deduction as per provisions of Income Tax Act 1561.




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

38: Contingent liabilities

(a) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts: claims made by contractors X 4,344.40 Lakbs {as at 31
March 2021; % 5,450.40 Lakhs}.

Some of the suppliers have raised claims including interest on account of non payment in terms of the respective
contracts. The Company has contended that the suppliers have not adhered to some of the contract terms, At
present the matters are pending before the jurisdictionat authorities or are under negotiations,

b} Claim made by customer not acknowledged as debts Ni) taf. at 31 March 2021: X 932,00 Lakhs),

c} Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts: cfaims made by customers - % 1,2102.10 Lakhs {as at 31
March 2021: amount not ascertainable)

d) Claims made by vendors in Nationa) Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) X 947.70 Lakhs {as at 31 March 2021: %
714,50 lakhs)

e} Claim against the Group by the supplier ; € 22.71 Jakhs {as at 31 March 2021: % 22.71 lakhs)

f} In respect of Service tax matter- Nil {as at 31 March 2021: £ 265,80 lakhs)

The Group has received orders for the period April 2016 to March 2017, in respect of Service Tax, levying demand
of X 265.80 lakhs on account of advance revenue received on which service tax has been already paid in financial
year ended 31 March 2016. Since Service Tax Liability has been already discharged on such advance revenue. The
Group has flled appeals before CESTAT. The Group has pad % 19.93 lakhs as pre deposit for filing of appeal,

g}in respect of Income Tax matters Nil {as at 31 March 2021: ¥ 580.20 Lakhs},

The Group has received orders for the period Assessment Year 2016-17, in respect of Income Tax, levying demand
of X 580.20 Lakhs on account of addition in income without considering the modus operandi of the business of the
Group. The Group has filed appeal before commissioner of Income Tax {CIT Appeals} The Group has paid % 10.00
Lakhs under protest. .

{f \ O
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INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

h) In respect of VAT/GST matters % 2,259.10 Lakhs {as at 31 March 2021: £ 155.00 Lakhs}

The group had received assessment orders for the financial years ended 31 March 2017 for demand of % 185.30
Lakhs, in respect of Andhra Pradesh on account of VAT and CST demand on the issue of mismatch in Input Tax
Credit and non submission of statutory forms. The group has filed appeals before the first appeltate authority in the
matter of CST and VAT demands.

The Group has recelved Entry Tax Assessment Order from Rajasthan Tax Department with demand of % 646.90
Lakhs during the year on the Inter State Purchases made during the FY 2015-16, 2016-17 & 2017-18 (tilt June} on the
assumption that the assessee has not paid any VAT/Local Tax on the final product. The Group has filed application
for reopening of the assessment and it is pending for disposal as on date. The Group has 2lso received tax demand
from kerela VAT for ¥ 251,10 Lakhs, and the Group has received show couse notice of T 1,125.20 Lakhs from GST
Vadodara on account of input tax credit utilization and reply of same has been ftled,

i) The Group has provided security i.e first pari-passu charge over the movable fixed assets, both present and
future, against term Loan from financial Institution taken by Inox Wind Limited {IWL}

j} In respect of Performance Bank Guarantee to Solar Energy Corporation of India is X 3,718.80 Lakhs (as at 31
March 2021: % Nil) :

The Holding Company has filed petition for “Harcda Wind Energy Private Limited", "Khatiyu Wind Energy Private
Limited”, "Ravapar Wind Energy Private Limited” and "Vigodi Wind Energy Private Limited”, on 22 March 2022
before Central Electricity Regulatory Commission {CERC), New Delhi for termination of letter of award dated 03
November 2017, Power Purchase Agreement (PPA} dated 27 December 2017 for 200 MW, for relieving from
financial implication and releasing of respective bank guarantees. The same is pending hefore CERC.

k} Other claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts X 216.00 Lakhs {as at 31 March 2021: Nil).

In respect of above matters, no additional provision is considered necessary as the Company expects favourable
outcome. Further, it is not possible for the Company to estimate the timing and amounts of further cash outflows, if
any, in respect of these matters.

Further, the company may be liable to pay damages/ interest for specific non- performance of contractual
obligation, The actual liability on account of these may differ from the provisions already created in the books of
accounts and disclosed as contingent liability.

Due to unascertainable outcome for pending litigation matters with Court/Appellate Authorities, the management
expects no material adjustments on the consolidated financial statements,




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastritcture Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 32 March 2022

39: Capital & Other Commitments

Capital Commitments
(a) Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of
advances) I3 984.65 Lakhs , (31 March 2021: X 2,295,2¢ Lakhs).

(b) Estimated amounts of capital commitment for setting up wind farm projects as awarded by SECl is % 3,23,970.70
Lakhs (31 March 2021: is ¥ 3,08,828.10 Lakhs)

Other Commitments
{a) Bank Guarantee issued by the Company to Power Grid Corporation of India Limited for ¥ 2,850.00 Lakhs {31
March 2021: X 2,500.00 Lakhs) '

{b} Bank Guarantee issued by the Group to its customer for £ 1,669.00 Lakhs {as at 31 March 2021: X 1,475.00
Lakhs).

¢) Group has issued Performance Bank Guarantee to Solar Energy Corporation of India is % 6,507.90 Lakhs (as at 31
March 2021: X 11,000.00 Lakhs)

d) Corporate Guarantee of % 5,000.00 Lakhs given to Financlals Institution against loan taken by group {as at 31
March 2021 X 5,000.00 Lakhs)

40: Leases

“Leases", which is mandatory w.e.f. 01 Aprit 2019, has replaced existing Ind AS 17 - “Leases", The Group neither
have any existing material lease contracts as on 01 April 2018 nor executed subsequently till 31 March 2022, The
adoption of the standard does not have any impact on the financial statement of the group. Following are the
details of Jease contracts which are short term in nature:

i. Amount recognized in consolidated statement of profit and loss Rs. in Lakhs
As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021

Included in rent expenses: Expense relating to short-term leases 128.95 247.20

i, Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of cash flows

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Total cash outflow for leases 128.95 247.20

41 : Balance Confirmation

The Greup has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from banks, trade receivables/payables,
advance to vendor and other parties. The balance confirmation letters as referred in the Standard on Auditing (SA)
505 {Revised) ‘External Confirmations’, were sent to banks and parties and certain parties' balances are subject to
confirmation/recenciliation. Adjustments, if any will be accounted for on cenfirmation/reconciliation of the same,
which in the opinion of the management will not have a material impact.




INOX GREEN EMERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Sarvices Limited}

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

42: Details of subsidiaries

Proportion of ownership interest and

Place of

Name of subsidiary incorporation and voting power held by the Group

operatlons As at Asat |

- 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

A) Subsidiaries of [GESL:
Marut Shakti Energy India Limited {upto 28 October 2021)** India NA 100.00%
Satviki Energy Private Limited {upto 28 October 2021)** India NA 100.00%
Sarayu Wind Power (Talimadugula) Private Limited {upto 28 October 2023)** India NA 100.00% |
Vinirrmaa Energy Generation Private Limited (upto 28 Octoher 2021)** India NA 100.00% |
Sarayu Wind Power (Kondapuram} Private Limited {upto 28 October 2021}*+ liidia NA 00.00%
RBRK Investments Limited {upto 28 October 2021)** India NA 100.00% |
Vasuprada Renewables Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Suswind Power Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Ripugaman Uria Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Vibhav Energy Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
lHaroda Wind Energy Private Limited india 100.00% 100.00%
Vigodi Wind Energy Private Limited india 100.00% 100.00%
Allento Wind Energy Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Tempest Wind Energy Private Limited India 100.00% 100.003;
Flurry Wind Energy Private Limited India 100.00% 100.0%%
Vuelta Wind Energy Private Limited India 100.00% 108.0035
Flutter Wind Energy Private Limited Indiu 100.00% 100.00% B
Nani Virani Wind Energy Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Ravapar Wind Enerpy Privatle Limited India 100.00% 1NN.00%
Khatiyu Wind Energy Private Limited India 100.00% O 106.06%
Sri Pavan Enargy Private Limited* India NA CoNA T
Resco Global Wind Service Private Limited (upto 18 October 2021}1** India NA 100.00%
Wwind Four Renergy Private Limited {w.e.f. 01 January 2021} india 100.00% 100.00%
B} Associates of IGESL: ) o
Wind Two Renergy Private Limited India 100.00% i00.00% !
Wind Four Renergy Private timited {(Upto 31 December 2020) India NA NE, )
Wind Five Renergy Limited India 100.00% 100.00% I
Wind One Renergy Limited. India 100.00% 100.00% |
Wind Three Renergy Limited. India 100.00% 10G.00% |

All subsidiaries and assoctates of IGESL are engaged in the business of providing wind farm development services and salp of wind ensygy. -

The financial year of the above companies is 1 April to 31 March.

*The IGESL has sold its investmaent in Sri Pavan Energy Limiled on 22 May 2020 at a consideration of X 5.10 lacs.

**Refer Note 32

There are no restrictions on the Parent or the subsidiaries" ability to access or use the assets and scttle the fiabilities of the Group'.

Refer Note 7.& 36 in respect of particulars of subsidiary companies which have become "associate’ on cessation of '_cuntrol.




Ih0N GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED iformarhe known 33 Inow Wind Infresiructiie Secvieat Limiled)
Nokes bo Lhe consolldated linandiel staloments lor the year ended 31 March 2027

43: Disch

af sdditional ind L

" I3} As at and lor Lhe yeur ended 31 March 2032

a1 requived by tha Schedula il

{*hSea hrle 7 & 36

iy, [ Lwkhs
Het Assets, L, total assety share inprofit or foss Sharx fn other share In tats] comprehansive |
miaus total llabAktin camprehensive [ncome ntame
N A %ol As W of
Name of the eatity fn (he Group Asseof Rl N ,
d|  Amounl lick Amount wther Asiian) oihar Amaunt
nsl a1aEls prelit or loss P '
Trcoma intomy
Parent
inex Wind Infrastracture Services Limlied 11228%| 90.571.09 rLo9k| 18835700 100004 |  23.97 TLONE|  [6,601.74)
Subsidinries [Gioup' shuse)
Indinn
Barun Shakdi Enargy Indle Limied - - 002 1143.50) - 0.0 149500
Sacayy Wind Power (Talmedopada) Private Limiied - - L) 1175}, - - LLis) {178
Shravyl Wind Pawer (Randaouram] Privaie Limited - 00 19263, .00 19.26]
Satvlel Energy Private Limiied 0.0 601 - .00 {060
Vinlermas Energy Ganeratian Privare Limihed - 1] 1279y 00 f12.79)
RERK [nvestments Limited - - .02 1e9.42] - 0.0 {188.42)
Rigudarman Utfs Privets Limives 10.00K] 13121 0.01%| 0,621 LM% 10624
Suswind Power Private thmited [0 06%) 5072 0.14% iam] 0.14% 1ae)
Vasuprada Renswables Privake Limlied 160075} 1337 o0% 10.601 0.01% 2621
¥Ibhay Enargy Prlvite LimMed [0.a1%l 15290 o01% nan omx nin
Haroda Wind Energy Prlvaig Limlied f0.a2%) 114.55) 0.42% 11411 oI 41
Wigodi Wind Energy Private Limfted [0.07%) 5o oa% {11551 o1k 111550
Allentos Wind Enerey Privale Limlied 10.05%) 146.35) D% 1270 0.)4% L1274}
Temoes! Wind Energy Private Limiled 10.06%) [45.79) 0.13% 11241 - 013K (12414
Flurry Wind Energy Privaie Limited 10.08%) [45.29) .14% nz - 0% t12.721
Wutity Whnd Engtey Private Umited e [45.74H Gl¥% 112.38) - - 0134 [1x38]
Flutter Wing Enargy Privale Limited 10.06%] [51.734 0.14% [TEX - - 04k {13.04]
Hanl ¥iran! Wind Endray Frivita Limied B.47% 517593 2.02% i1ee.12} - - 1.02% {188.12]
Ravaoar ‘¥ind Energy Private Limlied [02%) {1581] 0138 [11.95] - - 0.13% 1195
“Akhatlyl Wind Enes sy Private kimited 10.0%) 15.52) 0.13% L1165 a13% {11650
Resco Global Wind Service Prlvate Limied - . 0.00 [z.21) 0.00 2.21)
wind Four Renergy Frivate Limiied [5.8C5%0 [4,677.56) S.5a% 515.30 [5.55%) 515.99
Han Intarest in - - . . . .
siet lates
Wind Twe Reneiy Privatle Umnived - - *
Wind Four Reneigy Prlvaie Limlied* . -
‘Wind Fhve Aenerey Limiad - - - - - -
Wind Tne Renergy Limited B - - -
Wind Thrae Renergy Limitea - - - . - - - .
Cansolidstion ebrmlnatlans £ adlusiments 12.45%)| 10,0a2.95} 27160 [2.530.91) Q0% . 33k ins%ON0
Total 100.00% | 20,662.45 100.00X 9,21%.62 loe.oox| 2,97 | 100.00%| {9 295.55]
{a) A5 a1 andd For the year ended 31 March 2021
B, In Lakhs
Net Ascels, Le, batal aniets Share in mrofit of lass Shara in olher Share in lalal comprathensive
minus total Habilies comprehensive income incame
Hame of s entiry in the Group A % of As ol
At Kol As %ol dlduted
L] Amount Amaunt olher Amount ather Amount
nel apials profit or lowe prehenl t
income incoma
Parent
Ine ¢ Wind Infrsatruetuse Serviees Limleg 250.01%[ 1071518 46.E0%| {7.171.88] A0D0%] 1460 68.24%| I7.177.28)
Subsidinries [Grouyy share)
incttan
Wharul Shaki Ensrgy Indly Limied 118.08%} 12.065.08) 1.06% {163.33) 155K 1163.33)
Sarayy Wind Powver [TalNmadugan} Privaie Limled 12,955 112681} 0% {151 - 000K 1357
Lpiwyy Wind Powsr {Kendepuram] Private Limited 185 5] [75.61) oll% 11637} [+5 12 16370
Satelkd Ener gy Privata Limited LIk 7406 Q.01% 11.03) el 1.03)
Winltrena Energ? Generation Private limited 13.79%) {162 65] 0,15%, i22.42) 0.21% (22425
RORE Inveiiments Limited [25.1e%)|  (1.68133] 1.67%| 125739 - 245% (257,39}
Fhaudaman Urfs Private Limiled [0.06%) {2,501 0.00% | (0,66 - - A% (066}
Suswnind Pawer Private Lunilsd [0.88%) 137.72] o0E% t12.7a - 0.11% [t2.79
Vaugrada Renevrables Private Limiled [0.06%) 1230 O [b.72] - O0l% {r]
Vihav Energy Prizbie Limied 13 10%) win [ LitE 3 (327 0.01% Lz
liergds Wind Engigy Prtyabe LLniged {008%) {1.54) n0% [2.33) - 0.00% {2.33)
[ ¥igdi Wines Energy Privale Liehed (008X (347 0o2% [2.36) 0.0 {2.36)
Alieni g Wind Enargy Pihvpte Limited 12 72N] (F361) DOR% {12.53) 0.12% {1253
Tampesd Wind Ensrgy Nleine Limined (- 7ERH [33.38), TLE% {12.30) 0.12%] 112.39)
Fluery Wind Energy Prienie Limilied 1178%] [33.57) O0a% {12.49) 0.12%] L2 a9)
Wuella Wind Exerpy Prlvate Limited 1576%) [33.36} a0e% 2. - 012K s
Fluther Whnd Energy Private Limilsg - 00X {38.65} 0,048%. 112.75) - - [BF.Y 275
Awkl Virank Wind Enerry Private limled 108, 30K E517.15 0,064 19.66) - - Q05K [9.66)
Ravapar Wind Energy Private Limbed Q.00 {%.88] 0.02%] j2.68) - Q03% [2.68)
Katiyu Yind Energy Pilvate Limdied (0.0 12.87] COIN| 12,69 - - o03% [2.65)
Resee Glotal Wind Service Prheyte Lilled [0.69%) 129.65) 0098 14200 - - 0.34% [14.200)
Wi Four Renergy Private Limijed [(*) 170 83%; [3.023.58) 3 A6N| {40360 . -
N lbng Invieves: b subsldiarl - - -
phssotiates
Wind Two Renedgy Privave Limtad - - -
Windl Four Renergy Pilsale Limited|*) - -
Wi Flue Ransrgy Private Limited - -
Wind i Renedgy Pilvale Limled
Wlnd Thres Renergy Peivale Limated - -
2 fad [£77.52%) [7524.51) 17.99%]  [2754.88) 0,00, w2k {x70aRE)
.
[¥otal A00.00% 4,29507 100.00%] (15,367.2) 100.00K% ] 14.50 1 6ok [26,517.98




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED {formerly known as Inox Wind infrastructure Services Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

44: Interest in Other Entities:

=

Summarised Financial Information Rs. in Lakhs
Associates
Particulars
artieutar Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2022

{A) Non-Current Assets 1,24,068.63 1,48,821.74
{B} Current Assets

i} Cash and cash equivalent 134.86 §37.78

ii} Others 10,259.85 2,803.01
Total Current Asset 10,394,72 3,641.19

Total Asset {A+B)

1,34,463.35

1,52,462.93

{A) Non-Current Liabilities

i) Financial Liabilities 92,009.07 1,03,950,83

ji} Non Financial Liabilities - -
Total Non-Current Liabilities 92,009.07 1,03,990.83
(B8) Current Liabilities .

i) Financial Liabilities 29,322.97 33,433.06

i} Non Financial Liabilities 257.76 - 56.39°
Total Current Liabilities 29,580.73 “33,579.45
Total Liabilities (A+B) 1,21,589.80 1,37,570.2%
Net Assets 12,873.55 14,892.65
Summarised Performance Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars ] '

Associates
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Revenue 16,203.36 10,251.06
Profit and Loss before Tax (200,54} 16,263.20)|
Tax Expense 15.60 [1,30'9.52}!
Prefit and Loss after Tax (216.14) (5,653.58)}
Other Comprehensive Incoms - -]
Total Comprehensive Income {216.14) {5,653.5§
Depreciation and Amortisation 4,383.83 3,537.85
Interest Income 1,930,00 177.06
Interest Expense 11,762.00 12,028.02
Reconciliation of Net Assets considered for consolidated financial statement to net asset as per associate
financial statement ' .
Particulars - Associates :

' . Asat . As at .
: . 31 March 2022 . 31 pMarch 2021
Net Assets as per Entity Financial 12,873.55 14,832.55
Add/{Less) : Consolidation Adjustrrent {9,622.55) _{11,541.64)
‘Net Assets as per Consolidated Financials 3,251.00 - 3,252.00




44: Interest in Other Entities: {Continued)

Reconciliation of Profit and Loss/ OCI considered for consolidated financial statement to net asset as per

associate financial statement

Particulars

Associates

As at
- 31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Profit/(loss) as per Entity's Financial

{216.14}

{5,653.58)

Add/(Less] : Consolidation Adjustment

21614

3,010.23

Profit/(loss) as per Consolidated Financials

0« as per Entity's Financial

(2,643.35)

Add/{Less) : Consolidation Adjustment

OCl as per Consolidated Financials

Interest in Associates

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

{a) Wind One Renergy Private Limited

Interest as at 1st April

1.00

Add: Company become associate during the year

Add:- Share of profit for the year

(1.00)

Add:- Share of OCI for the year

Balance as at 31st March

{b) Wind Two Renergy Private Limited

Interest as at 1st April

3,251.00

Add: Shares Purchased during the year

Add:- Share of profit for the year

Add:- Share of OCI for the year -

Balance as at 31st March

3,251.00

3,251.00

{c) Wind Three Renergy Private Limited

Interest as at 1st April

1.00

Add: Company become associate during the year

Add:- Share of profit for the year

‘Add:- Share of OC! {or the year

Balance as at 31st March

{d) Wind Four Renergy Private Limited

Interest as at 1st April

1,851.00

Add: Shares Purchased during the year

740.40

Add:- Share of profit for the year

{750.35)

Add:- Share of QC| for the year

Less:- Amount transferred*

{1,801.05)

Balance as at 31st March

(e) Wind Five Renergy Private Limited

Interest as at 1st April

1,851.00

Add: Shares Purchased during the year

Add:- Share of profit for the year

{1,851.00)

Add:- Share of OCI for the year

Balance as at 31st March

* The dbove compa_n'ies have ceased to be associates during the year and have become subsidiary of the Group. {Refer Note 45)




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
Notes to the consciidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

. Note d5: ’
Trade Receivable ageing schedule As at 31 March 2022

Ouwtstanding for following periods [rom due dote of payment / date of

Particulars Wransaction Total
Ls h -
ess than 6 | 6 months -1 1-2 Years 2.3 Years Move than 3
manth Year YEars

i) Undlsputed Trade receivabl
(i} Un uc Tradere 4,413.22 495.2 651.70 249,79 314 5,813,090
considered good
lii} Undisputed Trade receivable -which
have significant increass in credit risk ’ .
{ili} Undisputed Trade receivable -credit
impaired . .
iv) Disputed Trade tvable concidared .
) raserec e 360,93 365.15 18.13 265.42 msa| 124022
good
[v} Bisputed Trade raceivable -which have
significant increase in credit risk B
{Vi} Disputed Trade receivable -credit
fimpaired )

Trade Receivahle ageing schedule As at 31 March 2021

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment / date

_ of transaction
Particulars Total

han 6 -
Less than 6 | 6 months -1 1-2 Years 2.3 Vears More than 3
moenth Year YEGrs

(i} Undisguted Trade receivable -

X 2,788.54 2,542.89 7,396.53 3,001.81 10,761.64 25,391.40
considered guod

{ii} Undisputed Trade receivable -
which have significant increase in - - - - . -
credit risk

{ili} Undisputad Tradle receivable -
credit impaired -

{Iv} Disputed Trade reccivable

] 288.74 179.51 351,80 237.97 0.31 1,058.34
considered good

[v] Disouted Trade roceivable -which
have significant increase in credit risk

{vl} Disputed Trade receivalile -credit
impalred

Note 45a, 1 -+
Trade Payuble aguing schedule #s at 3) March 2022

Qutstanding for fotlowlng periads from due dute of
payment { date of transactivn

Fartil:u_lars Less than 1 More than 2 Total
Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years years
{i) MSME ) - - . ' - .
(i} Others 4,807.15 1,825.30 735.00 654.81 8.026,25
(i} Disputed dues-hSME - - - - -
tiii} Lisputed duves-Others - - - . .

Trade Payahic ageing schedulo As at 31 March 2021 Co
o Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment / date of transaction

Particulars © Total
M
Less than 1 1.2 Yoars 2.3 Years ore than 3
Year yeurs .
(i} MSME . . 10.66 11.04 - 14.86 66.56
{ii} Others 25,016.12 12,852 83 3,632.15 .8,280.27, 49,881.36
{lil} Disputed dues-MSME - - . - -l )
(lii} Disputed dies-Others 245.53 783,37 76036 187.28 1,976.54




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

46. Ratio as per the Schedule Wi requirments

8} Current Ratio= Current Assets divided by Current Liability

{Xin Lakhs]
Partizualrs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current Assets 34,311.78 1,04,414.29
Current Uakility 75,380.68 2,23,541.70
Ratio 0.46 0.47
%Change from previous period -2.55% 165.79%
Reason for change more than 25% ; Not Applicable
b) Debt Equity ratio=Total debt divided by Total equity where total debt refer ta sum of current & non current
horrowing
Particualrs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total Debt 80,778.69 1,45,820.33
Total Equity 80,662,46 4,296.20
Ratio 113 33.94
%Change from previous peried -96.,68% 191,42%

Reason for change more than 25% : There has been fluctuation in cash flow due to operating and other activity.

¢) Debt Service Coverage Ratio [DSCR)=Earning available for debt services divided by tetal interest and principte

Particualrs 31 Warch 2622 31 March 2021
Met operating income 10,026.02 174,94
Debt Sorvice -
Principal Repayment 50,416.60 1,41,102.40
Interest 362.09 4,717.93
90,778.69 1,45,820.33
Ratic 0.11 0.00
%Change from previous period 9105.89% -98.77%
Reason for change more than 25% ; There has beem flucluatian in cash flow.
d) Return on Equity Ratio=Net profit after tax divided by Equity
Particualrs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Net profit {495.101 {15,366,14)
Total Equity 80,662.46 4,296.20
Ratio " {0.01) {3.58)
%Change from previous perfod -09.83% 561,05%
Reason for change more than 25% : There has been fluctuation In operating profit .
e} Inventary turnover ratio=Cost of materials consumed divided by average inventory
Particualrs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cost of materizl consumed 4,829.57 12,903.77
Average Inventory 1,710.07 35,723.21
Rario 2.82 | 036
SChange from previous period (31.86% -413.29%
Reason for change more than 25% : due to fluctuation In commissloning schedule date.
f) Trade Receivable turnover ratio= Sales divided by average receivabl
Particualrs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Sales 17,216.63 24,367.96
Avcrage reveivables 5,735.28 23,653.02
Ratio : 3.00 1.03
%Change from previous pericd 191,38% -44:16%

Reason for change more than 25% : due to fluctuation in commissioning schedule date.




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED [formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

46, Ratio as per the Schedute Il requirments

g} Trade Payable turnover ratio=Purchase divided by average trade payables

Particualrs - 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Purchase 5,685.05 12,453.96
Awerage trade payable 11,056.33 46,507.28
Ratio 0.51 Q.27
%Change from previous period 92.02% -44.65%

Reason for change more then 25% :Due to fluctuation in cash flows.

h) Net capital turnover ratio= Revenue from operations divided by Net working capital whereas net working capital= current assets-

currents labilities

Particualrs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Revenue from operations 17,216.63 24,367.96
Net Working copital {41,068.90) {1,19,127.41)
Ratio {0.42) {0.20)
%Change frem grevious period 104.94% 124.15%

Reason for change mere than 25% : There has been flucluation in operaling profit and cash flows and due to commissiong schedule dale,

i) Net profit ratio=Net profit alter tax divided by Revenue from operations

Particualrs 31 March 2022 31 March 2(2-_21
Net Proftt {495.10) [15,306.14}
Revenue [rom operations 17,216.63 24,267.96
Ratlo {0.03) (0.62)
%Change from previcus period -95.44% 382,86%
Reason for change more than 25% : There has been fluctuation in operating profit.

j} Return on capital employed=Earning before interest and taxes{EBIT}divided by Capital Employed

Particualrs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
EBIT 5,009,5_3 {-‘1?,3@ 1.47)
Capital employed 1,26,682,93 4,57,379.00
Ratio 0.04 {2.1C}
%Change from previous period -135.39% -368.73%

Reason tor change more than 25% : There has been fluctuation in operating profit.

%] Retiern on_investment=Net profit divided by Net Woith

31 March 202?._

33 March 2621

Particualrs

Net profit - {495.10) {15,266.14}
Mat worth 80 662.46 4,256 .30
Ratio {0.01) {1.58}
%Change from previous period -99,.83% 561.06%

Reason for change more than 25% : There has been fluctuation in operating profit.




THGX GREEN ENERGY SEAVICES UMITED flormeily haova at lnox Wind Inirasteuciure Servitey limfed]
Hetes 1o ih d financlat tor the year ended 31 March 2022

47 | Sagmand Inf rmstlon
421 As per Ind AL 108 'Operating Srgments’ Hig Group has fallawing business sagments:

&) Operatlon & dakntynance [DEM] = Providing Gperaifon & Maitenanca (DEM) services and Common [nfrastructure faellbies

L] Eractian, Procurament & Commissioning (EPC] - Providing Erectlon, Pracurement & Commisslaning [EFC) sarvices and devalopment
o wind larmy . .

<) Pawer gereratan

47.3 The entlre revenus of GEM snd EPT swgment i from domesike markel.

413 Informatlon aboul Primary [Susiness) Segmenls

{hs.ln Lakha)

I':n. IPartlculars 2021-2022 2020-2021

1 |Segmenl Ravanus

i, [Operation & Mulnleapnce . 17,132.30 172470
I |Erecilon, Procurament & Cammisiloning 9,282.37 114317
W. |Pawet genacation 9443 +
lv. |Tolal Sepmenl Ruvanus 2645900 24,367,95
w, jLwes s loten Segmant Revamg B .

¥h |Erection and Procurement - .

wlh. |Tets! Extainad Revenus 25,409.00 ZA 36706

A& fExternal Ravanue - Condnu‘lngﬂpenunns 11.116.63 1712479

18 |Emvernnl %evenue - Dlscontivdng Operallans 9,282,137 14317

2 [Sezmenl Rasul
L |Gperilon & Mamtenance 3,202 6% AR

M. |Erection, Pioturement & Commlissioning 13,952.01} [3.515.44}

IK. |Power gemeratlan (12,1602 [7.475,78]

I+ [Totel Sepmant Kesuft B {z.889.40)) {7.678.50))

v. |adatileisi: Un-allocable Invome f{EapansesHoath

vl |Add: hihar Incoma 1,B06.58 L4235

vl JLeas: Flnancs cost 1043235 1449532

whil [Tetal Proflt Befors Tan 113,320.57) [ 19,231.47]

ix, (tess : Faxatlongnet j 13,865 33/

2. |MeiProfi Alsr Tan L5 6E.14]

A |Nek Frofit/|Loss) After Tax - Continulng Operatlons [nyreen

28 [Net Profilfllossh Al Tax - Discontlnulog Operaiions (&, 820:04H (17.593.22}

3 [Gihar Intormation
L [Segmimnt Aszmiy
i, |Gperation & Myintenince . 1,84,037.86 1,67 84487

Il |Eraction, Procurement & Cammisslaning - 95,2180

Hl. P gensation 2712535 E,101.40

Iv. [Yolal Sepmanl Assats 21206161 2,62, 27907

b, JSagmant Usbliltles

<. |Operation & Malntena noe 1,09.447.83 B8,755.20

I |Erectian, Proquryment & Commissloning . 1,65,450,58

dll. |Poveer generajion 21,053.32 3761

b, Tetal Ssgment Lablikis 13140115 1.64,983.90

Uk |Zagment Sephisl Employad

L |Qparation & Malnenance 277812 T8,188.41

R JErecllan, Procurement & Commisshoning - 10,6 1670}

lil. |Power generaten 12, 114803 (3,276 61}

lv. |Tatal Sepment Capltal Emplayed 20.663.92 429520

W, |tapracialion & Amortlzation

| [Cpention & Malvenance 50tha% 4,908.26

Il |Erection, Procurament & Commissionkng - -

il |Power genedatlon 182 LB

Fe, [Tokal Depraciathon & Amenilistion 5018.01 4511.09

V. |Muteiial Non-cash expenses {other than deprecuilon)

| |Operatfon & Melntenance 34726 Lna?

. |Erecilon, Procwremenl & Comimbasnlng. 340085 1,961.28

ill. [Powser generation . -

tv. [Tolal Matesial Hon-carh whprares [cthar than dopreciation) 3,755.15 4,205.25

L In Associniad B ather o

L |Operation & Malmanance 35100 315100

N, {Ercttion, Procuremant & Cominissioning . .

M. {Power ganaration d d
_Ig___llulnl Invaziment 315000 3,250,000
A7.0 Rewanue [ram mijor Progucts § Serylces

5

to. Partlculars 1021-02 2030-2021
WVIL [[n} Salm of services

b |Operaiion & Madnterancs 1721653 17,188.00

I |Eraction, Procurament & Commiasioning BIE0.1E EALLEY)

il Jethers, On-alioeably and Corporate . : -

b} Other eparating revenus on.m 3664

Lesa :nter Segmant Revenue

Erectlan and Procurement - .
___J'lo{al 2649900 24.387.91

One customers In year ended 31 Murch 2022, Four Cusiomers [n yeas ended 31 March 2021 contrlbuled more than 0% of the total Broup's

Tevarpd ameunting 1o % 204890 Lavhs & 31 March 20217 14,54%.10 Lakha.




INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as ox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

48: The Group has policy to recognise revenue from operations & maintenance (O&M) over the period of the
contract on a straight-line basis, O&M agreement of 111 WTGs (31 March 2021 Nil WTGs) has been
cancelled/modified with different customers and also certain services are to be billed for which services have been

- rendered. The company’s management expects no material adjustments in the standalone financial statements on
account of any contractual obligation and taxes & interest thereon, if any.

49: impact of Covid-19

Due to outbreak of COVID-19 globally and in India, the company's management has made initial assessment of
impact on business and financiat risks on account of COVID-19, Considering that the company is in the business of
Erection, procurement and operation & maintenance services of Wind Turbine Generator in Renewable Energy
Sector, the management believes that the impact of this outbreak on the business and financial position of the
company will not be significant. The management does not see any risks In the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern and meeting its liabilities, The company has used the principles of prudence in applying judgments,
estimates and assumptions and based on the current estimates, the company expects to recover the carrying
amount of trade receivables including unbilled receivables, investments, inventories, advances and other assets.
Further, Commissioning of WTGs and maintenance services against certain purchase/service contract does not
require any material adjustment on account of delays, if any considering disruption due to COVID-19. The eventual
outcome of impact of the global health pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval
of these financial statements. Due to the nature of the pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor
- developments to identify significant uncertainties in future periods, if any,

50: Note on Advance received from customers

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has signed supply contracts for 125.4 MW Wind power projects of
38 Nos of 3300 KW WTG (Model WT3000DF} in the State of Gujarat with Gujarat Fluorochemicals Limited {GFCL).
The Group has received the interest bearing advance of % 16,678.20 Lakhs against the contracts. The Group Is in
process of fulfilment of the terms and conditions of the contracts. The same has been transferred to RESCO under
BTA executed on 31 December 2021.

51: Group has work-in-progress inventory amounting as on 31 March 2022 is Nil (as on 31 March 2021 %1,3874.40
lac) for project development, erection & commissioning work and Common infrastructure facilities in different
states, The respective State Governments are yet to announce the policy on Wind Farm Development. [n the view of
the management, the group will be able to realise the Inventory on execution of projects once Wind Farm

Development policy is announced by respective State Governments. The same has been transferred to RESCO under
BTA executed on 31 December 2021,




INGX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as Inox Wind (nfrastructore Services Limited)
Motes to the consclidated Anancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

52: Particulars of payment to Auditors

Rs. in Lakhs

. o Forthe Yearended  Forthe Year ended
Particulars

f 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Statutory audit 9.25 14.40
Tax audit and other audits under income-tax Act - 50 250
Taxation matters 5.62 -
Certilication feas 41.54 1.08
Chut of Pocket Expensas .28
Total 59.19 17,99

53: Revenue fram contracts with customers as per Ind AS 115

4] Disaggregated ravenuve information

Inthe loflowing table, revenue from contracts with customnears s disageregated by primary major products and service lines
since the Group has only one reportable business segment, no reconciliation of the disaggregated revenue Is required;

Reporiable segment/Manufacture of Wind Turbine

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Forihe Year ended  Far the Year ended
31 march 2022 31 March 2021
Malor Froductf Service Lines
Saie of services 15,773.28 24,331.32
Hhers 1,443.35 36.64
Total 17,216.63 24,367.96

B} Contract balances

All the Trade Receivables and Contracl Liabilittes have bean separately presanted In notes to accounts.
54: Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR)

{a) The gross amount required to be spent by the Group durlng the year anded 31 March 2022 towards Corporate Soclal
Kesponsibility {CSR} is N1 (for the year ended 31 March 2021; Nil),

{b) Amount spent during the year ended 31 March 2022;

Rs. 3n Lakhs
Particulars In Cash Yet to be paid Total
in cash
{1} Constructionfacquisition of any fixed assets il Hil il
{Nil} {Mil} {MNil}
{ii} On purpote other than (i) above - Donations L1 Hit Hit
NIl il) {Nil)

[Figures In brackets pertain 1o 31 March 2021)

55 : The Code on Social Security, 2020 'Code’) relating to emplayee benefits during employ and post-employment benefits
has received President|al assent on 28th September 2020. The Code has been published In the Gazette of India. However, the
elfzctive date of the Code Is yet to be notified and Nnal rules for quantifying the financlal impact are also yet to be issued. In
views of this, the Company will assess the Impact of the Code when relevant provisions are notified and will record related
impact, if any, In the peried the Code becomes effectiva.




561 There is no amount required transferring o the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

57: The Previous year Mgures have been regrouped, wherever necessary to confirm the respective year presentation, The
figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee and any discrepancles In any note between the total and sums of the
amounts are due to rounding aff.

58; Other statutory Information

(i} There ara no changes or satisfaction which are to be reg|slored with tne registrar of companies during the year snded March
31, 2022 and March 31, 2921 except below:

The Lender ARKA Fincap has confirmad that entige Facility has been paid by the Growp. The Sroup has conlirmed thal the Charge
satlslaction of the faciiity is pending and will be satisfied in due course.

(i) The Growp complies with the aumber of layers of compantes in accordance with ciause 87 of Section 2 of the Act read with
the Companies (Restriction on number of layers) rules 2017 during the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 35, 2021,

{if} The Group has not invested or traded In cryptocurrency or virtual eut rency during the yoar anded March 31, 2022 and
idarch 31, 2221,

{ivl Ng proceedings have baen initiated on or are pending against the company for helding Eenami proparty under the
Prohlbltion of Banam| Property Transaction Act 1988 (as amended in 2016) formally the Benami Transactions [Prohibition) Act,
1388 (45 of 1988} and Rules made thereundear during the year ended March 33, 2022 and March 31, 2021, '

{+] The Group has nol been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or linancial institution or government or any governmment
authorities durlng the year ended March 21, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

Wi} The Graup has riot entered into any scheme of arrangement ipproved by the competént authorlty in terms of sections 23’
tor 237 of the Companles Act 2015 during the year snded March 31, 2622 and March 21, 2021

{¥i1] During the year endad March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the Compary has not turrendered or disclnsed as Income any
uansactions not recarded 1n the books of accounts in the course of tax azsessments under the Ircorre Tax Act, 1961 {such as
search or survﬂv ur any other relevant provisions of the lncome Tax Act 1961). '

a. directly or indirecthy land er invest In other persons or entities identifiad In any manner whawsaever by or on behalf ofthe
tompany {ltimate bencficiaries) or

1
L. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Lltimate beneficiaries,
{wili) Ercept balow, During the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the Comgany has not received any funds fron

any pessans or entitles including forelgn entitles (Funding pany) with the understanding (whe:her recorded in writing ar
otherwise] that the company shall ;

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identificd In zny manne- whatsoever by or on bohalf of tne
funding party [ultdmate beneficiarias) or

b. proiide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the uitimate beneficiaries.

Fund Fund Date of Fund

Funding Party/Ultimate Benlficary | Recalvad {1co} Paid {0} Recrived and
party Date of Fund

1% i Lakhs) [% in Lidihs) advanced

Purty to whom Funds Given

tnax Wind Lingted 551,31 ! .25 Various Natas  [Marct Shakt] Energy Indra Limitod
Inox Wind Limitad - 21288 1707 Various Dates  |ABRE (nvastments Limited
Inox Wind Lmited 2,200.84 2204 |Various Datas  |Resca Global Wind Servlez Private Limited

For tha year ended 31 Macch 2021: Nit

In resp‘eét of above trans'ac'lbn, the company has complied relevani provislans of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1995,
Companles Act 2013 #nd Prevantion of Money-Laundering Act, 2002 to the extent applicable.




lix) Quartelry returns or statements of the curent assets filed by the Company with banks or financlal institutlons are in
agreement with books of accounts except below:-

For the year endad 31 harch 2022

Valize a5 per Value as per
Name ol Lender and Type of Return " [returns baoks of p Reconciliation Reason of material
facilities peried/Type  [submitied amount discrepancies
accounts
with lenders
Yas Bank and |CICI Bank {Cash The repartad
Credit/Worklng Capltal/Demand  |June'21 [Debtors) 267851 2.6054,10 15.59 [amount reconciles
Loan) with gross debtors
Yes Bank and iCICI Bank {Cash une21
.. une’
Cradit/Working Capital/Cemand 3,362.70 147693 114.23
(inventary)
Loan)
Yes Bank and ICICI Bank {Cash The reported
Cradit/Working Capital/Demand |Sep'21 {Debtors) 2,878.00 288798 2.98 |amount reconciles
Loan) with gross debtors
Yes Bank and ICICL Bank {Cash —
E;
Credit/Working Capital/Cemand # 3,015.00 4,000.17 954,17
tinventary)
Loan}
Yes Bank and ICIC| Bank (Cash The reported
Credit/Working Capital/Demand  |Dec'21 {Debtors) 793,70 615.88 1182.82}|lamount reconciles
Loan) with gross debtors
Yes Bank and ICIC| Bank [Cash Dec2]
Credit/Working Capital/Demand Hveniony) 127.40 127.45 0.05
Loan}
Yes Bank and ICIC| Bank (Cash Marchiz2 The reported
ar
Credit/Working Capital/Demand {Debrors) 623.91 706.90 82.9% |amount reconciles
Loan] with pross deblors
Yes Bank and ICHE] Bank (Cash Marchi2
- - . Bl
Credit/Working Capital/Demand finventory) 446,90 213.78 [233.12)
Loan)
For the year ended 31 March 2021
Value as per Value as per .
Namuy of Lender and Type of Return returns books olp Reconciliation Reason of material
facllitles period/Type”  |submitted ~ amount discregancies
accounts
with lenders
Yas Bank and [ndusind Bank {Cash The reported
Credi/Working Capital/Demand | june'20 (Erebiars) 2,587.20 2,615.20 28.00 |amount reconcilas
Lcan] with gross dabtors
Yes Bank and Indusind Bank {Cash June20
" N N . une
Credir/Working Capital/Demand inventary) 3,299.60 3,288.22 111.38)
Loan)
Yes Bank and [ndusind Bank {Cash The reportad
Credit/Working Capital/Demand  |5ep"20 {Debtors) 2,502.50 2,771.22 261.72 |amount reconclles
Laan) - with gross debtors
‘fes Bank and Indusind Bank (Cash Se'20
Cradit/\Working Capltal/Remand P 3,489.50 3,449.05 [40.45)
- (lnventary) .
Loan])
Yes Bank and Indusing Bank [Cash The reportad
Credit/Working Capital/Cemand | De¢'20 (Debtors) 2,529.60 2.562.93 33.33 Jamount reconclles
Loan) - with gross debtors
¥et Dank and Indusind Bank (Cash Decs0
Creditf/Working Capital/Demand 1,432.10 344273 9.63
tnwventany)
Loan)
Yes Bank and Indusind Bank (Cash Marchi21 The reported
Credit/Working Capital/Demand 2,703.00 2,709.03 6.03 |amount reconciles
(Debtors) .
Loan} with gross debtors
Yes Bank and Indusind Bank {Cash Marchiz]
. arc
Credit/Working CapitalfDamand 3,508.70 3,271.98 (234.72)
{Inventory)
Loan}
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$9.The "Board of Directors of the Company had approved fund raising, subject to receipt of requlsite approvals Including the
approval of the sharehold market conditi and ather considerations, by way of an initial public offer of its Equity Shares
comprising of fresh issue of Equity Shares (“Fresh Jssue®) andf or an offer for sale of Equity Shares by certain existing and ellgible
shareholders of the Company (together with the Fresh Lssue, “Dlfer”} In accordance with the Companles Act, 2013 and the Rules
made thereunder, the Securitles and Exchange Board of india [lssue of Cagital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018,
as amended and other applicable faws.

in connection with the Offer, the Company has filed a draft rad herring prospectus {“DRHP") with the Securitles and Exchange
Board of India ("SEBI*) on 7 February 2022. The proposed Offer consists of a Fresh fssue of Equity Shares aggregating upto %
37,000.00 kakhs and an offer for sale of Equity Shares aggregating upto % 37,000.00 Lakhs by the Inox Wind Limited.

Tha Company has withdrawn DRHP vide their bbard resolution dated 28 Aprll 2022 and communicated to Book Running Lead
Wanagers to the Offer [“BRLM") vide latter dated 28 April 2022,

Further, the Board of Directors of the Company in their Meeting hald on 9 May 2022 have accorded 2 fresh approval, sublect to
receipt of requisite approvals including the approval of the shareholders, market conditions and othar considerations, by way of
an inltial pubdic offer of its Equity Shares comprising of fresh issue of Equity Shares by the Company aggregating upto %
50,000.00 Lakhs {"Fresh Issue”) and/ or an offer for sale of Equity Shares by certain existing and sligible shareholdsrs of the
Company (together with the Fresh Issue, “Offar”) In accordance with the Companies Act, 2012 and the Rules made thersunder,
the Securhties and Exchange Board of India {Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2018, as amended and
other applicable laws.

60. The Holding Company Incorperated a Whally-owned subsidiary namely “Wind Four Renargy Private Limited” IWFRPL] for
setting up wind farm projects as awarded by Solar Energy Corporation of India [SECI under Tranche - | {SOW). The Holding
Company had invested funds In WFRPL in the farm of Fquity Share Capital for the execution of projects. The Helding Campany
had invested amounting to % 2,591.40 Lakhs in the Equity Shares. During the previous yesr, the Holding Company had filed an
appeal against the Central Elecwrical Regulatory Commisslon {CERC) order dtd, 08 March 2021 in Applellate Tribunal for
Electricity ("APTEL") for further extension of scheduled commission date {5CoD). During the year, APTEL vide its order dtd. 11
January 2022 condoned the delay and extended the SCol from its date of order. Subsequently, CERC filed an appeal against the
APTEL order In Honorable Supreme Court. In viaw of the management, the Holding Company will be able te realize the money
from WFRPL once the project witl commission subject to the outcome of the resolution of the matter with the regulators / Court
and Imprevement in its future operational parformance and financial support from the Holding Company.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Dewan PN Chopra & Co. -
Chartered Accountants

Vinee tine Cavis

Director
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Govind Prakash Rathoy Pooja Paul
Chlef Financlel Officer - Company Secretary
Placa : New Dethi Place : Noida

Date ; 13 May 2022 Date : 13 May 2022




